
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD MAWRTH, 24 IONAWR 2023 
 
 
AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R CABINET 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD AML-
LEOLIAD O’R CABINET A GYNHELIR YN Y SIAMBR,  NEUADD Y 
SIR, CAERFYRDDIN, SA31 1JP NEU O BELL AM 10.00 YB, DYDD 
LLUN, 30AIN IONAWR, 2023 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A 
AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 

Swyddog Democrataidd: Julie Owens 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224088 
E-bost: juowens@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Cyfarfod aml-leoliad yw hwn. Gall aelodau’r pwyllgor fynychu’n bersonol yn 
y lleoliad a nodir uchod neu o bell drwy’r ddolen Zoom a ddarperir ar wahân. 

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar wefan y cyngor drwy'r ddolen canlynol:- 
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
 

   Y CABINET  
AELODAETH – 10 AELOD 

 
CYNGHORYDD PORTFFOLIO 

Cynghorydd Darren Price Arweinydd 

Cynghorydd Linda Evans Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Gartrefi  

Cynghorydd Glynog Davie Addysg a'r Gymraeg  

Cynghorydd Ann Davies Materion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio 

Cynghorydd Philip Hughes Trefniadaeth a'r Gweithlu  

Cynghorydd Gareth John Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 

Cynghorydd Alun Lenny Adnoddau 

Cynghorydd Edward Thomas Gasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith 

Cynghorydd Jane Tremlett Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd 

 

 



 
 

 
  

 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL   
 
3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y 

CABINET A GYNHALWYD AR 09 IONAWR 2023  
5 - 18 

 
4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU   
 
5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD   
 
6. DEISEB AR GYFER DIOGELWCH PALMENTYDD A FFYRDD - 

CASTELLNEWYDD EMLYN  
19 - 34 

 
7. Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM GRONFA FFYNIANT 

GYFFREDIN Y DU  
35 - 66 

 
8. CYMERADWYO ARFOR 2 (2022-2025)  67 - 76 
 
9. Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM Y STRATEGAETH 

WASTRAFF  
77 - 118 

 
10. I GADARNHAU PENODIAD IS-GADEIRYDD Y PWYLLGOR 

CRAFFU - LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD FEL 
CYNRYCHIOLYDD YR AWDURDOD AR 'PATROL' A'R AELOD 
CABINET DROS WASANAETHAU GWASTRAFF, TRAFNIDIAETH 
A SEILWAITH FEL YR EILYDD ENWEBEDIG  

 

 O ganlyniad i ymddiswyddiad Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu - Lle, 
Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd (Cyng. John James) o PATROL 
(Rheoliadau Parcio a Thraffig y tu allan i Lundain). 
 

 

 
11. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 

AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN 
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

CABINET 
 

9 IONAWR 2023  
 
 

PRESENNOL Cynghorydd D. Price (Cadeirydd) (Yn y Siambr) 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr): 
C.A. Davies; L.D. Evans; G. Davies; P.M. Hughes; G.H. John; 
A. Lenny; E.G. Thomas; J. Tremlett; A. Vaughan Owen.  

 
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn rhithwir) 
Cynghorydd D. M. Cundy.  
 
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
W. Walters, Prif Weithredwr; 
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau; 
C. Moore, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol; 
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Addysg a Phlant; 
P.R. Thomas, Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad); 
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith; 
S. Burford, Rheolwr y Prosiect; 
C. Higginson, Rheolwr Cyfryngau; 
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Cymorth y Cabinet; 
G. Ayers, Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Phartneriaeth; 
A. Eynon, Prif Gyfieithydd; 
M. Runeckles, Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau (Asiantaeth); 
J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol  (Yn rhithwyr): 
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd; 
S. Hendy, Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau. 
 
Y Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin, SA31 1JP ac o bell: 10:00yb - 11:35yb 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Ni chafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
  

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
  

Y Cynghorydd Rhif y Cofnod Y Math o Fuddiant 
A.    Davies 12.          12 - Ail Gartrefi ac Eiddo 

Gwag 
Mae hi'n rhedeg Airbnb fel 
rhan o'i busnes fferm.  

  
3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD YCABINET A 

GYNHALWYD AR 12 RHAGFYR 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod Cabinet a 
gynhaliwyd ar 12  Rhagfyr 2022 yn gofnod cywir. 
  

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



 

 
4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU 

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu 
cyflwyno gan yr Aelodau. 
  

5. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
  
 
5.1. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYHOEDD I'R CYNGHORYDD ALED VAUGHAN 

OWEN - YR AELOD CABINET DROS NEWID HINSAWDD, 
DATGARBONEIDDIO A CHYNALIADWYEDD 

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd wrth y Cabinet nad oedd modd i'r holwr Conor 
MacDonald fod yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod i ofyn ei gwestiwn, ond roedd 
wedi gofyn i'r Cadeirydd ofyn y cwestiwn yn ffurfiol i'r Cynghorydd Aled 
Vaughan Owen ar ei ran. 
  
Cwestiwn: 
  
“Yn sgil y newidiadau diweddar a gymerwyd gan Gyngor Dinas Caeredin, 
Dwyrain Swydd Dunbarton, Gogledd Swydd Aeron (Ayrshire), Falkirk a 
Dundee yn dilyn yr ymgyrch "Get Me Home Safely" gan Unite, a fydd y 
Cabinet yn cefnogi newid yn yr amodau trwyddedu yn Sir Gaerfyrddin i 
sicrhau bod busnesau lletygarwch yn darparu taith adref am ddim i 
weithwyr sy'n gweithio'n hwyr ar ôl 23:00? A allai'r cynghorydd roi 
rhesymau am ei ateb os gwelwch yn dda?” 
  
Ymateb y Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen: 
  
“Diolch i chi am y cwestiwn 
  
Rydym yn cydnabod y gall teithiau i'r gwaith neu o'r gwaith yn y nos achosi 
i weithwyr bryderu am ddiogelwch personol, bygythiad trais a hyd yn oed 
trais ei hun. Rwy'n gwybod bod ymchwil y cyfeiriwyd ato yn ymgyrch Unite 
"Get Me Home Safely" wedi canfod bod menywod yn teimlo'n arbennig o 
agored i niwed ac i'r risg o aflonyddu ac ymosod wrth deithio i'r gwaith ac 
yn ôl. Fel cyngor rydym wedi ymrwymo i leihau trais yn erbyn menywod, 
neu fygythiadau ohono, ac mae ein swyddogion trwyddedu yn mynd ati i 
weithio gyda safleoedd trwyddedig, gan eu hannog i fabwysiadu 
ymgyrchoedd fel y Rhuban Gwyn ac Ask Angela. 
  
Felly, mae mabwysiadu ymgyrch "Get Me Home Safely" yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin yn sicr yn werth archwilio ymhellach fel rhan o'r ymrwymiad 
hwn. Yn amlwg byddai unrhyw effaith bosib ar yr amodau trwyddedu 
presennol yn destun ymgynghoriad. Byddwn yn sicr yn cadw llygad ar yr 
ymgyrch hon ac yn ymateb i unrhyw ddatblygiadau yn y dyfodol." 
 

Tudalen 6



 

  
6. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR 

 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb refeniw a oedd yn rhoi'r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y sefyllfa gyllidebol fel yr oedd ar 31 Hydref 2022, o 
ran 2022/2023.   
  
Yn gyffredinol, roedd yr adroddiad monitro yn rhagweld gorwariant ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ar lefel adrannol o £4,844k gyda gorwariant ar gyllideb refeniw net yr 
Awdurdod o £3,473k. Ar lefel uchel, roedd hyn o ganlyniad i gyfuniad o'r 
canlynol: 
 
      Setliadau cyflog a drafodir yn genedlaethol ar lefelau llawer uwch na'r 

gyllideb, na darparwyd cyllid llywodraeth ychwanegol ar ei gyfer. 
Amcangyfrifon lefel uchel yw y gallai hynny fod yn £7.1m yn uwch na'r 
gyllideb;   

       gorwario mewn meysydd gwasanaeth yn sgil cynnydd yn y galw ynghyd â llai 
o arian grant o gymharu â blynyddoedd blaenorol, yn enwedig Anableddau 
Dysgu a Gwasanaeth Plant. 

       Gostyngiad parhaus mewn incwm masnachol, gan gynnwys meysydd parcio, 
canolfannau hamdden a phrydau ysgol; 

       Tanwario cyllido cyfalaf oherwydd oedi cynllun ac angen llai am fenthyg 
  
Nodwyd bod yr Awdurdod, fel rhan o broses pennu cyllideb 2022/23, wedi cytuno 
ar gyllideb wrth gefn gwerth £3m yn ystod y flwyddyn a gedwir yn ganolog ar hyn 
o bryd ac a oedd yn gwrthbwyso'n rhannol y pwysau cyffredinol a nodwyd 
uchod.  Ar ben hynny, adroddwyd bod £200k wedi'i ddefnyddio i wrthbwyso'r 
cynnydd mewn prisiau tanwydd sy'n cael effaith ar Gludiant Ysgolion. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai y rhagwelir gorwariant o £665k ar gyfer 2022/23, 
a fyddai'n cael ei gyllido drwy gyfraniad o gronfeydd wrth gefn. Manylir ar hyn yn 
Atodiad B o'r adroddiad. Nodwyd hefyd mai'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai fyddai'n gyfrifol 
am ariannu cynigion cyflog a drafodwyd yn genedlaethol, ac amcangyfrifwyd eu 
bod yn £0.5m dros y gyllideb. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 

6.1 Derbyn adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb, a nodi'r sefyllfa gyllidebol a'r 
camau unioni priodol a gymerwyd.  

6.2 O ran gorwariant sylweddol ar feysydd penodol o'r gyllideb, bydd y 
Prif Swyddogion a'r Penaethiaid Gwasanaeth yn adolygu'n feirniadol 
yr opsiynau sydd ar gael iddynt er mwyn mynd i'r afael â'r effaith 
barhaus.  

7. STRATEGAETH CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2023/24 i 2025/26 
 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi golwg gyffredinol ar y 
Strategaeth Cyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer 2023/24 a'r ddwy flynedd ariannol 
ganlynol. Roedd yr adroddiad yn rhoi manylion am broses y gyllideb, setliad dros 
dro presennol Llywodraeth Cymru ac amserlen y setliad terfynol ac yn clustnodi'r 
gwasgfeydd dilysu a'r gwasgfeydd cyllidebol y byddai'n rhaid i'r Aelodau roi sylw 
iddynt wrth bennu cyllideb refeniw'r flwyddyn nesaf. Byddai'r adroddiad hefyd yn 

Tudalen 7



 

sail i'r broses ymgynghori ar y gyllideb i'w chynnal yn ystod Ionawr a Chwefror 
2023. 
  
Nododd yr adroddiad, ar ôl addasiadau ar gyfer trosglwyddiadau a nodwyd gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru, mai 8.5% (£26.432 miliwn) oedd y cynnydd yn y setliad dros 
dro ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin. Felly roedd y Cyllid Allanol Cyfun wedi cynyddu i 
£338.017 miliwn yn 2023/24.  Er bod y setliad yn sylweddol uwch na'r ffigwr 
dangosol o gynnydd o 3.4% ac yn darparu £15.5m yn fwy na'r hyn a ragwelwyd 
yn wreiddiol, nodwyd bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cydnabod na fyddai'r ffigwr 
uwch yn ddigon i gwrdd â'r pwysau chwyddiant sy'n wynebu cynghorau ar hyn o 
bryd ac y byddai angen gwneud penderfyniadau anodd. 
  
Nodwyd, er bod gwaith sylweddol eisoes wedi'i wneud wrth baratoi'r gyllideb, dim 
ond datganiad sefyllfa cychwynnol oedd yr adroddiad, a fyddai'n cael ei 
ddiweddaru dros y misoedd nesaf wrth i'r gyllideb gael ei datblygu ymhellach.  
Fodd bynnag, dywedwyd, oherwydd yr oedi yn y setliad dros dro, a'r effaith o 
ganlyniad ar gadarnhau cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru, na fyddai'r setliad terfynol 
yn cael ei gyhoeddi tan 7 Mawrth 2023. 
  
Wrth gydnabod pwysigrwydd critigol lleihau'r cynnydd yn y Dreth Gyngor i 
breswylwyr yn ystod yr argyfwng costau byw presennol, roedd angen ymateb i'r 
risgiau presennol o amgylch y Strategaeth Gyllideb hon a'r cefndir chwyddiant 
parhaus. Roedd y Strategaeth Gyllideb, yn unol â'r Cynllun Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig, yn cynnig y dylid cynyddu'r Dreth Cyngor ar gyfer 2023/24 i 7%,, a oedd 
yn ceisio lliniaru gostyngiadau i wasanaethau critigol. Byddai'r cynnig yn cael ei 
ystyried fel rhan o'r broses o gwblhau'r gyllideb dros y mis neu ddau fis nesaf a 
phan fyddai'r Awdurdod yn cael eglurhad pellach am gostau ac arian grant gyda'r 
bwriad o gyfyngu'r cynnydd yn y Dreth Gyngor cyn belled ag y bo modd. Byddai 
cynigion terfynol y gyllideb wedyn yn cael eu cyflwyno i'r Cabinet yng nghanol/ar 
ddiwedd mis Chwefror, a fydd yn caniatáu cyflwyno cyllideb gytbwys i'r Cyngor 
Sir ar 1 Mawrth 2023. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
  
7.1 Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a chymeradwyo Strategaeth Gyllideb 

dair blynedd 2023/24 i 2024/25 fel sail i ymgynghori. Ceisio 
sylwadau yn benodol gan ymgyngoreion ar y cynigion 
effeithlonrwydd yn Atodiad A. 
  

7.2 Nodi'r swm heb ei ddyrannu o £716k yn y strategaeth gyfredol, a 
fyddai'n cael ei ystyried ymhellach ar ôl cwblhau'r ymgynghoriad 
fel y nodir ym mharagraff 4.3 o'r adroddiad. 

  
8. Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM RAGLEN GYFALAF 2022/23 

 
Cafodd y Cabinet adroddiad a oedd yn amlinellu'r sefyllfa gyllidebol ddiweddaraf 
ar gyfer rhaglen gyfalaf 2022/23, fel yr oedd ar 31 Hydref 2022 gan fanylu ar y 
prosiectau a throsglwyddiadau newydd i'w nodi a'u cymeradwyo gan y Cabinet. 
  
Dywedwyd y rhagwelwyd gwariant net adrannol o £64,369k o gymharu â 
chyllideb net weithredol o £148,334k gan roi -£83,965k o amrywiant.  
  

Tudalen 8



 

Roedd y gyllideb net yn cynnwys rhaglenni cyfalaf gwreiddiol y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 
a'r Gronfa Gyffredinol a gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ar 2 Mawrth 2022 a 
llithriad o 2021/22. Nodwyd bod rhai cyllidebau hefyd wedi cael eu diwygio yn 
unol â’r gwahaniaethau yn y dyraniadau grant o gymharu â'r dyraniadau 
disgwyliedig pan gafodd y rhaglen ei chymeradwyo a dyfarniadau grant a 
dderbyniwyd yn ystod y flwyddyn hyd yn hyn. 
  
Nodwyd bod Atodiad B yn manylu ar y prif amrywiannau ym mhob adran. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
  
8.1     fod yr adroddiad ar ddiweddaru'r rhaglen gyfalaf yn cael ei dderbyn; 
8.2.     bod y prosiectau newydd, fel yr oeddent yn yr adroddiad, yn cael eu 
nodi a'u cytuno. 
 

9. CYNLLUN GOSTYNGIADAU'R DRETH GYNGOR 
 
Cafodd y Cabinet adroddiad a oedd yn amlinellu gwybodaeth o ran Cynllun 
Gostyngiadau’r Dreth Gyngor 2023/24.  Diben yr adroddiad hwn oedd gofyn am 
fabwysiadu'n ffurfiol Gynllun Gostyngiadau’r Dreth Gyngor a gyflwynwyd yn lle 
Budd-dal y Dreth Gyngor ym mis Ebrill 2013 am 2023/24. 
  
Nododd Aelodau fod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi llunio rheoliadau sy'n cadw 
Cynllun Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor, 2013/14 (gyda diwygiadau cyfyngedig) am 
2014/15 a'r blynyddoedd dilynol.   
  
Er ei fod yn gynllun Cymru gyfan, roedd yn ofynnol i Gynghorau unigol gan 
Reoliadau'r Gofynion Rhagnodedig fabwysiadu Cynllun Gostyngiadau'r Dreth 
Gyngor yn ffurfiol erbyn 31 Ionawr bob blwyddyn, fel arall byddai'r "Cynllun 
Diofyn" yn berthnasol a oedd yn golygu na fyddai'r Cyngor yn gallu arfer ei 
ddisgresiwn o ran yr elfennau dewisol cyfyngedig yn y cynllun rhagnodedig.   
  
Os yw'r Cyngor yn dymuno arfer ei bwerau o ran y meysydd disgresiwn 
cyfyngedig sydd ar gael iddo, mae'n ofynnol iddo wneud hynny fel rhan o'r broses 
mabwysiadu cynllun ffurfiol. 
  
Ar ben hynny, amlinellodd yr adroddiad er gwybodaeth, heb unrhyw argymhelliad 
am newid, y meysydd cyfyngedig o ddisgresiwn lleol, a'r polisi a fabwysiadwyd 
gan y Cyngor mewn perthynas â'r disgresiwn hynny. Fodd bynnag, er nad yw'r 
cynllun wedi newid yn faterol ar gyfer 2023/24, yn ogystal â'r uwchraddio 
blynyddol arferol o rai ffigurau ariannol a ddefnyddir ar gyfer asesu hawl unigol a 
rhai addasiadau technegol (fel y'u nodir yn  
Rheoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau’r Dreth Gyngor (Gofynion Rhagnodedig a’r 
Cynllun Diofyn) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2023, gwnaeth yr offeryn statudol nifer o 
ddiwygiadau eraill y manylir arnynt yn yr adroddiad.  
  
 

Tudalen 9



 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR yn amodol ar y 
rheoliadau'n cael eu cymeradwyo ac yn dod i rym ar 20 Ionawr 2023 ei fod 
yn:- 
  
9.1. Mabwysiadu'n ffurfiol Gynllun safonol Cymru Gyfan ar gyfer  

Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor a ddarperir yn  
            a. Rheoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor a  

 Gofynion Rhagnodedig (Cymru) 2013, a 
  
9.2. Gweithredu'r ffigurau uwchraddio blynyddol (a ddefnyddir wrth 

gyfrifo hawl) a'r diwygiadau technegol eraill sydd wedi'u cynnwys yn 
Rheoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor (Gofynion 
Rhagnodedig a'r Cynllun Diofyn) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2023, a fydd yn 
dod i rym ym mis Ionawr 20 ac mae'r rheoliadau hyn yn berthnasol 
mewn perthynas â chynllun gostyngiadau'r dreth gyngor a wnaed ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol sy'n dechrau ar 1 Ebrill 2023; 

  
9.3. Parhau i arfer ei ddisgresiwn o ran elfennau disgresiynol cyfyngedig 

y cynllun rhagnodedig, fel y'u hamlinellir yn y Crynodeb Gweithredol.  
  

10. CYLLIDEB Y CYFRIF REFENIW TAI 2023/24 I 2025/26 A PHENNU RHENTI 
TAI AR GYFER 2023/24 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried Cyllideb y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 2023/24 i 2025/26 a 
chynigion Pennu Rhenti Tai ar gyfer 2023/24 cyn i'r Cyngor eu hystyried.  Bu'r 
Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad a baratowyd gan Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol, ar y cyd â swyddogion o'r Adran Cymunedau a oedd yn dod 
ynghyd â'r cynigion diweddaraf ar gyfer Cyllidebau Refeniw a Chyfalaf y Cyfrif 
Refeniw Tai am 2023/24 i 2025/26.  Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad wedi cael ei 
ystyried, a'i gymeradwyo, gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau yn ei gyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 19 Rhagfyr 2022 fel rhan o'r broses ymgynghori ar y gyllideb, 
cafodd darn o'r cofnodion ei atodi i'r adroddiad yn Atodiad C. 
  
Roedd yr adroddiad wedi cael ei baratoi gan adlewyrchu'r cynigion diweddaraf a 
oedd yn rhan o Gynllun Busnes y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, sef y prif gyfrwng cynllunio 
ariannol ar gyfer darparu Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy (STSG+) ar gyfer y 
dyfodol. Nodwyd bod y buddsoddiad arfaethedig yn y cynllun busnes presennol 
wedi cyflawni Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin erbyn 2015 (i'r cartrefi hynny lle'r oedd 
tenantiaid wedi cytuno i gael y gwaith wedi'i wneud), wedi darparu'r buddsoddiad 
i gynnal Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy, ac wedi parhau i fuddsoddi yn y 
Cynllun Cyflawni Tai ac Adfywio. 
  
Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn manylu ar sut y byddai rhenti'n cynyddu ar gyfer 
2023/24 gyda chyllideb y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai yn cael ei gosod i adlewyrchu'r 
canlynol:- 
  

       Y Polisi Rhenti Tai Cymdeithasol (a bennir gan Lywodraeth Cymru)  
       Cynigion yng Nghynllun Busnes Cyfrif Refeniw Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin 
       Cynllun Cyflawni ar gyfer Adfywio a Datblygu Tai 

  
 

Tudalen 10



 

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau fod buddsoddiad cyfalaf o tua 
£231m wedi darparu Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin i denantiaid ac, yn fwy diweddar, 
hyd at ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol, byddai £92m pellach wedi cael ei 
wario ar gynnal Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy ar gyfer eiddo a thenantiaid. 
  
Dros y 3 blynedd nesaf disgwylid y byddai £61m pellach yn cael ei wario ar 
gynnal a gwella'r stoc tai. Roedd y gyllideb  hefyd yn darparu cyllid o tua £43m 
dros y 3 blynedd nesaf i gefnogi'r Rhaglen Tai Fforddiadwy, ar ben y gwariant 
presennol o £68m hyd at ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol hon. Byddai'r 
Strategaeth hefyd yn cynyddu'r cyflenwad o dai fforddiadwy ledled y sir, a hynny 
drwy wahanol atebion gan gynnwys ein rhaglen adeiladau newydd a'r cynllun 
prynu'n ôl.  Ar ben hynny, gan fod cost uwch deunyddiau oherwydd Brexit, Covid, 
y rhyfel yn Ewrop a diffyg gweithwyr wedi ei gwneud yn anodd dod o hyd i 
bartneriaid addas ymysg contractwyr, byddai hyn yn cael ei fonitro'n barhaus 
drwy gydol y flwyddyn sydd i ddod. 
  
Atgoffwyd Aelodau'r Cabinet, ers 2015, ei fod yn ofynnol i'r Awdurdod fabwysiadu 
Polisi Cysoni Rhent Tai Cymdeithasol Llywodraeth Cymru, a oedd yn golygu bod 
y cynnydd arfaethedig mewn rhent yn cael ei ragnodi gan gyfarwyddyd 
Llywodraeth Cymru, a thrwy hynny, ddarparu dosbarthiad mwy teg o'r rhenti ar 
gyfer tenantiaid y sector cymdeithasol.   
  
Er i'r polisi hwnnw ddod i ben yn 2018/19, a bod polisi interim wedi'i roi ar waith 
ar gyfer 2019/20, roedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi datblygu polisi newydd i'w 
weithredu  yn 2020/21 am gyfnod o 5 mlynedd o 2020/21, a oedd yn cynnwys 
rhai gofynion ychwanegol/diwygiedig, fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad. Roedd prif 
elfennau'r polisi hwnnw'n caniatáu i Awdurdodau Lleol gynyddu cyfanswm y rhent 
gan y Mynegai Prisiau Defnyddwyr (CPI) +1% ar gyfer pob un o'r pum mlynedd 
hyd at 2024/25. Roedd hefyd yn caniatáu i lefel y rhent ar gyfer tenantiaid unigol 
godi o hyd at £2 ychwanegol ar ben CPI+1% ar gyfer cysoni rhenti, ar yr amod 
na fyddai cyfanswm yr incwm rhent a gasglwyd gan y landlord cymdeithasol yn 
fwy na CPI+1%. Fodd bynnag, os bydd CPI y tu allan i'r ystod o 0% i 3%, mae'r 
polisi'n darparu i'r Gweinidog â chyfrifoldeb am Dai benderfynu ar y newid priodol 
i lefelau rhent i'w gymhwyso ar gyfer y flwyddyn honno yn unig. Gan fod CPI yn 
10.1% ym mis Medi 2022 mae'r cymal hwn wedi'i actifadu eleni ac roedd 
Gweinidog y Llywodraeth dros Newid yn yr Hinsawdd wedi cyfarwyddo na 
ddylai'r cynnydd mwyaf yn yr amlen rent ar gyfer unrhyw awdurdod lleol fod yn 
fwy na 6.5%.  
  
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau y byddai'r polisi cyfredol hwn yn gymwys tan 
2024/25 ac yn cynnwys meini prawf ychwanegol ynghylch bodlonrwydd 
tenantiaid, cyfleusterau amwynder, caledi ariannol, lleihau achosion o droi allan 
ac effeithlonrwydd ynni. 
  
Yn wyneb yr heriau, dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau yr ymatebwyd i'r 
holl flaenoriaethau a bod cynnydd cyffredinol mewn rhent o 5.5%, sef 1% o dan y 
terfyn a osodwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  Yn yr amlen cynnydd rhent 
gyffredinol, cynigiwyd bod yr Awdurdod yn parhau â'r cynnydd mewn rhent a 
bydd hyn yn cael ei osod ar uchafswm o £1 ar gyfer eiddo sy'n is na'r rhent 
targed.   
  
 

Tudalen 11



 

Yn gryno, cynigiodd yr adroddiad y cynnydd canlynol:   
  
•       Byddai eiddo ar rent targed yn cynyddu 5.36%, a oedd yn cynrychioli cyfran 

fawr o denantiaid - bron i 8,000 o denantiaid.    
  

•       Bod cynnydd o 5.36% yn cael ei wneud i renti eiddo a oedd yn is na'r rhent 
targed ynghyd â chynnydd o £1 yr wythnos ar y mwyaf,  
  

•       Byddai rhenti uwchben y targed yn cael eu rhewi hyd nes iddyn nhw gyrraedd 
y targed.   

  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR: 
  
10.1 Bod rhenti tai cyngor yn cynyddu 5.5% (£5.18) ar gyfartaledd fesul 

preswylfa yr wythnos yn ôl Polisi Rhenti Tai Cymdeithasol 
Llywodraeth Cymru; 
  
•    Bydd cynnydd o 5.36% yn digwydd i renti eiddo sydd ar y rhenti 

targed; 
•    Bod eiddo lle mae'r rhent yn is na'r rhenti targed yn cynyddu gan 

5.36% ynghyd â'r cynnydd o £1 yr wythnos ar y mwyaf, 
•    Caiff y rhenti hynny sy'n uwch na'r targed eu rhewi hyd nes eu bod 

yn unol â'r targed.  
  

Bydd hyn yn arwain felly at Gynllun Busnes cynaliadwy, cynnal 
STSG+, darparu adnoddau ar gyfer ein Cynllun Cyflawni Adfywio a 
Datblygu Tai, ac roedd yn cael ei gynnal gan y Tîm Strategol Adfywio 
a Thai; 
 

10.2.  Cadw rhenti garejis ar £9.00 a sylfeini garejis ar £2.25; 
 

10.3. Gweithredu'r Polisi ynghylch Taliadau am Wasanaethau i sicrhau bod 
y tenantiaid sy'n elwa ar wasanaethau penodol yn talu am y 
gwasanaethau hynny; 

 
10.4. Cynyddu'r taliadau am ddefnyddio ein gwaith trin carthffosiaeth yn 

unol â'r cynnydd mewn rhenti; 
  
10.5. Cymeradwyo Cyllideb y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai ar gyfer 2023/26 (cyllidebau 

dangosol oedd rhai 2024/25 a 2025/26), fel y nodwyd yn Atodiad A; 
 

10.6.   Cymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf arfaethedig a'r cyllido perthnasol ar 
gyfer 2023/24, a'r gwariant mynegiannol a bennwyd ar gyfer 2024/25 
hyd 2025/26, fel y nodwyd yn Atodiad B. 

  
11. CYNLLUN BUSNES 2023-26 Y CYFRIF REFENIW TAI RHAGLEN 

BUDDSODDIADAU TAI SIR GAERFYRDDIN 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried Cynllun Busnes y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 2024/26 a Rhaglen 
Buddsoddiadau Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a oedd yn esbonio gweledigaeth a manylion 
Rhaglen Buddsoddiadau Tai y Cyngor dros y dair blynedd nesaf, gan gynnwys 
cynlluniau i wella'r stoc dai, y rhaglen adeiladu tai newydd a'r cynllun i fod yn 
garbon sero net. 

Tudalen 12



 

  
Esboniodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gartrefi, wrth gydnabod yr heriau economaidd 
a'r anawsterau y mae cymunedau'n eu hwynebu o ran costau byw cynyddol, fod 
cymorth parhau i denantiaid sydd mewn angen yn hanfodol a'i fod wrth wraidd y 
gwaith sy'n ei wneud.  Dywedwyd bod y Cyngor eisoes wedi darparu dros 1,600 
o dai ychwanegol ac y byddai'r rhaglen ddatblygu newydd yn cefnogi'r gwaith o 
ddarparu 2,000 rhagor o dai, gan gefnogi'r broses o adfywio canol ein trefi, ein 
trefi a'n pentrefi gwledig a'n safleoedd adfywio mawr gan gynnwys y rhaglen 
Trawsnewid Tyisha. 
  
Byddai'r rhaglen waith yn gwneud cyfraniad sylweddol at fynd i'r afael â'r 
argyfwng hinsawdd ac mae'n dilyn egwyddorion y Cyngor i fod yn Awdurdod 
Carbon Sero Net erbyn 2030. Roedd y Cyngor ar flaen y gad o ran ei ymagwedd 
tuag at ddatgarboneiddio tai, a fyddai'n gwneud tai'n fwy fforddiadwy i denantiaid, 
yn darparu cyflyrau byw iachach ac yn creu Sir Gaerfyrddin fwy cydnaws â'r 
amgylchedd. Dangosodd y cynllun ymrwymiad cadarn i gefnogi'r buddsoddiad 
sydd ei angen ar gyfer datgarboneiddio ein cartrefi a fyddai'n cynnwys gwella 
perfformiad ein tai, gosod atebion gwresogi carbon isel a thechnoleg 
adnewyddadwy.  
 
Amlinellodd y cynllun y byddai'r Cyngor yn parhau i ddarparu rhaglen 
gynhwysfawr o waith i gartrefi ac yn cynnal gwasanaethau i'w holl denantiaid.  
Byddai hefyd yn helpu i roi hwb i'r economi leol gan greu swyddi a chyfleoedd 
hyfforddiant newydd.  Yn ystod tair blynedd y cynllun hwn, byddem yn buddsoddi 
dros £260m mewn tai cymdeithasol yn Sir Gaerfyrddin (£103m Cyfalaf a £157m 
Refeniw). 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR: 
  
11.1 Cadarnhau'r weledigaeth ar gyfer ein rhaglenni buddsoddiadau tai 
 dros y 3 blynedd nesaf; 
  
11.2 Cytuno y gellir cyflwyno Cynllun Busnes 2023-26 i Lywodraeth 
 Cymru; 
 
11.3 Nodi'r cyfraniad a wnaeth y gwnaeth y Cynllun i'r Cynllun cyflawni ar 
 gyfer Adfywio a Datblygu Tai i gefnogi'r gwaith o ddarparu dros 2,000 
 o gartrefi newydd; 
  
11.4 Nodi pwysigrwydd y buddsoddiad sydd wedi'i gynnwys yn y Cynllun 
 a'i rôl o ran ysgogi'r economi leol a chreu swyddi lleol a chyfleoedd 
 hyfforddiant. 
  

12. AIL GARTREFI AC EIDDO GWAG 
 
[Sylwer: Roedd y Cynghorydd A. Davies wedi datgan buddiant yn gynharach yn 
yr eitem hon a gadawodd y cyfarfod cyn i'r cais gael ei ystyried a chyn y gwnaed 
penderfyniad yn ei gylch.] 
  
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi gwybodaeth am y meysydd i'w 
hystyried mewn perthynas ag Ail Gartrefi/Cartrefi Gwyliau Tymor Byr ac Eiddo 
Gwag.  A gafodd ei lunio yn dilyn pryderon a godwyd ar lefel leol a chenedlaethol 

Tudalen 13



 

am effaith ganfyddedig niferoedd cynyddol ail gartrefi ac eiddo gwag ar ein 
cymunedau. 
  
Nododd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau, wrth gyflwyno'r adroddiad, yn 2021, fel 
rhan o'r cytundeb rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a Phlaid Cymru, y cyhoeddwyd 
ffyrdd o fynd i'r afael â'r argyfwng ail gartrefi, gan gynnwys yr hawl i godi'r 
premiwm i 300% a defnyddio'r weithdrefn gynllunio a thrwyddedau. Yn ganolog i'r 
bwriad oedd sicrhau tegwch, a bod modd cael tai fforddiadwy o ansawdd da i 
bawb tra bo'r perchnogion ail gartrefi yn gwneud cyfraniad teg ac effeithiol i'r 
cymunedau lle prynir yr eiddo. 
  
Tynnwyd sylw Aelodau'r Cabinet at yr argymhellion fel y nodir yn yr adroddiad.  
Dylid gwneud cywiriad i'r argymhelliad ynghylch ail gartrefi, i fod yn gywir, yr 
argymhelliad o ran premiwm oedd ystyried codi premiwm o naill ai 50% neu 
100% ar Ail Gartrefi. 
  
Nodwyd bod gan Sir Gaerfyrddin tua 2,300 o dai gwag ar unrhyw adeg benodol.  
Yn ogystal, o dan y ddarpariaeth newydd, tŷ gwag hirdymor yw preswylfa sydd 
wedi bod yn wag a heb ei ddodrefnu'n sylweddol am gyfnod parhaus o flwyddyn 
o leiaf. Mae tua 1,300 o dai o'r fath yn Sir Gaerfyrddin.  Roedd yr heriau wrth 
ddelio ag eiddo o'r fath yn eang ac yn amrywiol ac mae llawer o'r cyfrifoldeb dros 
geisio mynd i'r afael â'r problemau hyn yn disgyn ar awdurdodau lleol.  Er bod 
gan yr Awdurdod Lleol y cyfrifoldeb a'r pwerau cyfreithiol i ddod â thai gwag yn ôl 
i ddefnydd, nid oedd yn ymarferol nac yn ddymunol ym mhob achos. 
  
Dywedwyd bod codi Premiymau'r Dreth Gyngor ar Eiddo Gwag ac Ail Gartrefi yn 
un opsiwn oedd ar gael i'r Awdurdod er mwyn rheoli'r sefyllfa yn lleol.  Fodd 
bynnag, rhaid ystyried y dyletswyddau statudol i gynnal asesiadau effaith ar 
gydraddoldeb dan Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 a Dyletswyddau Cydraddoldeb 
Cyhoeddus Cymru 2011, a phob ystyriaeth berthnasol arall. 
  
Yn ogystal, dylid ystyried cysylltu â rhanddeiliaid allweddol ac ymgynghori, gan 
gynnwys yr etholwyr lleol, cyn penderfynu a ddylid codi premiwm yn y naill achos 
neu'r llall. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
  
12.1 Cynnal ymgynghoriad ac asesiad effaith ar gyflwyno premiymau'r 

dreth gyngor ar eiddo gwag gyda chynnig bod y canlynol yn cael ei 
gyflwyno: 

  
•       50% i'r rhai sydd wedi bod yn wag rhwng 1 a 2 flynedd; 
•       Wedyn byddai lefel y premiwm yn cynyddu i 100% i'r eiddo hynny 

sydd wedi bod yn wag rhwng 2  a 5 mlynedd; 
•       wedyn cynnydd pellach i 200% ar gyfer eiddo sydd wedi bod yn 

wag am 5 mlynedd neu hirach; 
 

Tudalen 14



 

  
12.2 Cynnal ymgynghoriad ac asesiad effaith ar gyflwyno premiymau'r 
 dreth gyngor ar Ail Gartrefi/cartrefi gwyliau gyda chynnig o godi 
 premiwm o naill ai 50% neu 100% ar gyfer pob eiddo sy'n cael ei 
 ddosbarthu fel ail gartref o dan Ddosbarth B o Reoliadau'r Dreth 
 Gyngor (Dosbarthau Rhagnodedig ar Anheddau) (Cymru) 1998. 
 

13. RHYBUDD GYNNIG DYDD GWYL DEWI 
 
Cafodd y Cabinet adroddiad i'w ystyried a oedd yn nodi'r cynnydd o ran y 
Rhybudd o Gynnig y cyfeiriwyd at y Cabinet gan y Cyngor Sir ar 28 Medi 2022 
[gweler cofnod 11.1]. 
  
Nododd yr aelodau fod creu gŵyl gyhoeddus neu ŵyl banc yn fater o statud sy'n 
dod dan gyfrifoldeb Llywodraeth San Steffan a bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi 
lobïo San Steffan i'r cyfrifoldeb gael ei ddatganoli i Gymru. Fodd bynnag, roedd 
hyn wedi'i wrthod hyd yn hyn, er bod yr Arweinydd blaenorol wedi ysgrifennu at 
Lywodraeth Cymru i ofyn am agwedd Cymru gyfan at Ddydd Gŵyl Dewi.  Yn y 
bôn, heb gytundeb Llywodraeth San Steffan na phwerau datganoledig i 
Lywodraeth Cymru  ni fyddai unrhyw gyllid ar gael o ganlyniad i symud gŵyl 
banc/gŵyl gyhoeddus bresennol neu greu un newydd. 
  
Y gost dybiannol o ychwanegu'r diwrnod Statudol yw oddeutu £350k i weithwyr y 
Cyd-gyngor Cenedlaethol. Pe bai staff addysgu hefyd yn cael eu cynnwys, 
byddai'r cwantwm yn cyrraedd tua £700k. 
  
O ystyried y sefyllfa ariannol bresennol y mae'r Cyngor yn ei hwynebu, cynigiodd 
yr Aelod Cabinet dros Drefniadaeth a'r Gweithlu, na fyddai camau pellach yn cael 
eu cymryd ar hyn o bryd ynghylch pwynt c o'r rhybudd o gynnig; i ddynodi Dydd 
Gŵyl Dewi yn ddiwrnod ychwanegol o absenoldeb â thâl i'w staff ar 1 Mawrth 
bob blwyddyn.  Eiliwyd y cynnig hwn. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
  
13.1.   Galw ar Lywodraeth San Steffan i ddatganoli i Lywodraeth Cymru yr 

awdurdod dros benderfynu ar wyliau banc yng Nghymru (drwy'r 
Ddeddf Bancio a Thrafodion Ariannol 13.1) yn yr un modd â'r hyn 
sy'n digwydd ar hyn o bryd yn yr Alban a Gogledd Iwerddon, a gofyn 
i holl Gynghorau Cymru wneud cais tebyg drwy Gymdeithas 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru; 

  
13.2.   Nodi'r gefnogaeth gyhoeddus ar gyfer creu gŵyl y banc ar Ddydd 

Gŵyl Dewi yng Nghymru, a bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gofyn 
droeon i Lywodraeth y DU ddatganoli'r pwerau angenrheidiol; 

  
13.3    nad yw camau pellach yn cael eu cymryd o ran ymchwilio i'r 

posibilrwydd a goblygiadau o ddynodi Dydd Gŵyl Dewi yn ddiwrnod 
ychwanegol o absenoldeb â thâl i'w staff ar 1 Mawrth bob blwyddyn. 

  
13.4    ystyried ymhellach sut y gall y Cyngor gefnogi dathliadau Dydd Gŵyl 

Dewi ymhellach ar 13.4 Mawrth a thua'r amser hwnnw, gan weithio ar 
y cyd â Chynghorau Tref a Chymuned a phartneriaid allweddol eraill i 
sicrhau budd diwylliannol ac economaidd. 

Tudalen 15



 

  
 

14. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN AR 
GYFER 2021/22 
 
Cafodd y Cabinet adroddiad am Adroddiad Blynyddol y Cyngor ar gyfer 2021/22, 
a gynhyrchwyd yn unol â gofynion Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol 
(Cymru) 2015 a Deddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021, a oedd yn 
ei gwneud yn ofynnol i'r Cyngor lunio adroddiad blynyddol ar ei amcanion 
Llesiant ac i adrodd ar berfformiad, yn seiliedig ar ddull hunan-asesu. Roedd yr 
adroddiad yn cyfeirio yn ei dro at bob un o 13 Amcan Llesiant y Cyngor ac yn 
asesu'r cynnydd a'r addasiadau a wnaed yn ystod y flwyddyn.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR fod Adroddiad 
Blynyddol Drafft Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin ar gyfer 2021/22 yn cael ei 
dderbyn. 
  

15. UNRHYW FATER ARALL 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau eraill o fater brys. 
 

16. GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
fel y'i newidiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 
(Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007, orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod tra oedd yr 
eitemau canlynol yn cael eu hystyried, gan fod yr adroddiadau'n cynnwys 
gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 
12A i'r Ddeddf. 
  

17. CYMORTH ARIANNOL AR GYFER CHRT / LLANELLY HOUSE 
 
Ar ôl cynnal prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y 
cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod rhif 11 uchod, beidio â chyhoeddi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am faterion 
ariannol neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod 
oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A 
i'r Ddeddf).  Roedd prawf budd y cyhoedd mewn perthynas â'r adroddiad 
hwn yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran datgelu'r wybodaeth a geir ynddo 
oherwydd byddai datgelu gwybodaeth am weithrediad Plas Llanelly a allai 
wanhau ei sefyllfa mewn perthynas â thrydydd partïon y mae'n ymwneud â 
nhw. 
 
Cafodd Aelodau'r Cabinet adroddiad mewn perthynas â chymorth ariannol ar 
gyfer Adfywio Treftadaeth Sir Gaerfyrddin/Plas Llanelly i'w ystyried.  Mae Plas 
Llanelli yn allweddol i gefnogi adfywio Canol Tref Llanelli ac roedd angen cymorth 
i sicrhau cynaliadwyedd parhaus y plas. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL barhau i gefnogi prosiect Adfywio 
Treftadaeth Sir Gaerfyrddin/Plas Llanelly drwy gymeradwyo pecyn cymorth 
o hyd at £60k y flwyddyn am 2 flynedd pellach. 
  
 

Tudalen 16



 

 
 
 

18. PENTRE AWEL 
 
Ar ôl cynnal y prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol â'r Ddeddf 
y cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod rhif 11 uchod, beidio â chyhoeddi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am faterion 
ariannol neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod 
oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A 
i'r Ddeddf).  Roedd prawf budd y cyhoedd mewn perthynas â'r adroddiad 
hwn yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran datgelu'r wybodaeth a geir ynddo 
oherwydd byddai datgelu'r wybodaeth yn tanseilio safle'r contractwr wrth 
negodi ag is-gontractwyr a chyflenwyr, gan ei roi ar anfantais yn y 
farchnad. 
  
Cafodd Aelodau'r Cabinet adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi diweddariad ar y contract 
adeiladu a fforddiadwyedd Parth 1 Pentre Awel. 
  
Cynigiodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
argymhelliad ychwanegol i ddirprwyo awdurdod i Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol a'r Prif Weithredwr i barhau i drafod pris terfynol y contract a 
chytuno ar y pris hwn ar y cyd ag Arweinydd y Cyngor a'r Aelod Cabinet dros 
Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth a'r Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau.  
Eiliwyd y cynnig hwn. 
  
Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gweinyddu fod angen i'r cyngor llawn ystyried yr 
adroddiad a'r argymhellion yn yr adroddiad er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad fel 
eitem eithriedig. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR: 
  
18.1    Derbyn a nodi cwblhad a chanlyniadau cam cyntaf y contract dylunio 

ac adeiladu dau gam i ddarparu Parth 18.1 Pentre Awel; 
  
18.2    Mynd ymlaen i ail gam y contract gyda Bouygues Construction, yn 

unol â'r argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad; 
  
18.3.   Nodi'r cynnydd wrth sicrhau cytundebau tenantiaeth; 
  
18.4.   Bydd unrhyw ddiffyg ariannol yn cael ei ddarparu drwy gyfuniad o 

gyfraniadau ychwanegol cyllidwyr allanol, cyllid wrth gefn Cyngor Sir 
ar gyfer Pentre Awel (Bargen Ddinesig), a chyllid ychwanegol gan y 
farchnad. Ar ôl cadarnhau pris Bouygues, bydd tabl cryno yn cael ei 
rannu gydag Aelodau'r Cabinet ac yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet. 
Cynhelir rhaglen o Beirianneg Gwerth parhaus gyda Bouygues drwy 
gydol cyfnod y contract i sicrhau rheolaeth gadarn ar gyfer costau; 

  
 

Tudalen 17



 

 
18.5    Dirprwyo awdurdod i Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol a'r 
 Prif Weithredwr i barhau i drafod pris terfynol y contract a chytuno ar 
 y pris hwn ar y cyd ag Arweinydd y Cyngor a'r Aelod Cabinet dros 
 Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth a'r Aelod Cabinet dros 
 Adnoddau.  
 
 
 
_______________________   __________________ 
CADEIRYDD      DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 18



 

 
 
 

DEISEB AR GYFER DIOGELWCH PALMENTYDD A FFYRDD - 
CASTELLNEWYDD EMLYN 

 
Y Pwrpas:  
Ymateb i ddeiseb a dderbyniwyd gan y Cyngor ar 12 Hydref 2022.   

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:  
 

1. Bod cynnwys yr adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
2. Bod y deisebwyr yn cael gwybod am yr adroddiad  
3. Bod arolygon traffig ac asesiadau croesfannau i gerddwyr yn cael eu cynnal mewn 

lleoliadau allweddol yng Nghastellnewydd Emlyn yng Ngwanwyn 2023 a bod y 
deisebwyr yn cael gwybod am y canfyddiadau. 

 
Y Rhesymau:  
Darparu ymateb y Cyngor ynghylch y mater a godwyd i'r deisebwyr. 
 
Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad                    OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                     NAC OES  

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-               
Y Cynghorydd Edward Thomas 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
 
Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Steve Pilliner 
 
Awduron yr Adroddiad: 
Richard Waters 
Mike Jacob 

Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Gwasanaeth - 
Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth  
 
Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth 
 
Rheolwr Traffig a 
Diogelwch Ffyrdd 

Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
 
 
 
sgpilliner@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
rwaters@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
mjacob@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
  

CABINET
30 IONAWR 2023 

Tudalen 19

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:rwaters@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET 

30th JANUARY 2023  
 

PETITION FOR NEWCASTLE EMLYN ROAD AND PAVEMENT 
SAFETY 

Introduction 
 
A petition was presented to Council on the 12th October 2022 by Newcastle Emlyn Town Councillor 
David Thomas relating to Road and Pavement Safety in Newcastle Emlyn. Council unanimously 
resolved that in accordance with Corporate Procedure the petition be referred to the Cabinet for 
consideration. 
 
The petition included 370 signatories who requested the County Council: 
 

a. Carry out, or procure, a thorough road and pavement safety review into all factors affecting 
the safe use of public roads and pavements in Newcastle Emlyn (Bridge Street, Castle 
Street, Church Lane, College Street, Ebenezer Street, Emlyn Square, Market Place, Market 
Square, New Road, Old Graig Street, Porth Street, Sycamore Street, Water Street, the area 
leading from the Tanyard Lane carpark out to College Street (by NFU) and all three public 
carparks) 

 
b. Highway designers should seek safety opportunities specific to the needs of Newcastle 

Emlyn and apply sound safety and traffic engineering principles and solutions to achieve a 
safer road and pavement infrastructure for Newcastle Emlyn. For example, improve the 
existing zebra crossing near the police station (or improve and convert it to a puffin crossing), 
install a second zebra or puffin crossing near Cawdor Hall (clock tower), remove all 
unnecessary sections of ‘dropped kerb’, install speed indicator devices and/or speed 
cameras, install safety barriers, increase safety signage. 

 
c. Promote and encourage the safe use of public roads and pavements by all classes of road 

and footpath users through the circulation of advice, information and knowledge gained from 
the review”. 

 
These requests are discussed further within this report. 
 
The streets referred in in the petition cover the core area of Newcastle Emlyn as shown on the 
plan below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 20



 

 
 
Background Information 
 
The Council works with partner agencies in accordance with our statutory duties in a number of 
areas to improve road safety and prevent road traffic collisions.  This work falls within three main 
areas: 
 

• Education – road safety education and training including working with schools. 
 

• Engineering – including highway improvements, traffic calming and traffic management 
schemes. 

 
• Enforcement – supporting Dyfed Powys Police and Go Safe on tackling inappropriate driver 

behaviour and through the Council’s own on-street parking enforcement. 
 
These areas are explained in more detail below. 
 
 

Tudalen 21



 

Education 
The County Council’s Road Safety Team work with partner agencies on a range of educational 
initiatives which are predominantly funded by Welsh Government.  These initiatives have been 
developed nationally and locally based on evidence of the key higher risk road-user groups to 
improve road safety and encourage sustainable travel choices.   
 
The Council also works closely with partners to focus on higher risk groups. This includes the 
following: 
 

• Kerbcraft which is aimed at reducing child pedestrian casualties by delivering practical 
pedestrian training for 5 to 7 year olds in primary schools.  This is also linked where possible 
to Safe Routes to Schools initiatives. 
 

• National Cycle Training to encourage more people to cycle, more often and with less risk.  
This is aimed at Primary School children in year 6. 

 
• Mega Drive programme which targets 16-18 year olds and provides key road safety 

messages to reduce the number of car occupant casualties in this age range and includes 
challenges the attitudes to risk, increasing the knowledge of in-car safety and reinforces the 
driver and passenger’s responsibilities. 

 
• Pass Plus Cymru which is an initiative aimed at new drivers between the ages of 17 and 

25 who have less than one year’s driving experience. The initiative provides young drivers 
with additional knowledge and it provides advice on driving techniques.  

  
• Mature Driver course which provides refresher training to drivers aged 65 and over 

including changes to the Highway Code, a discussion of age-related physical changes such 
as changes to sight and hearing and includes a refresher lesson from an Advanced Driving 
Instructor. 

 
• Dragon Rider Cymru which provides motorcycle training to a variety of user groups who 

evidence indicates are at a higher risk.  The training package encourages post-test 
motorcyclists training on how to improve their riding skills and is available to those who may 
be returning to motorcycling after a period of absence, recent motorcyclists and those 
upgrading their motorcycles to more powerful machines. 

 
• Biker Down Cymru provides focused training for motorcyclists who wish to enhance their 

knowledge in dealing with road related incidents or collisions at may require basic first aid 
interventions at roadside. 

 
• Targeted Active Travel & Road Safety at selected schools to encourage safe walking, 

cycling and scooting.  This includes reception walks with parents for 4-5 year olds, Kerbcraft 
training for 5-7 year olds, Balanceability for 3-7 year olds, GoRide for 7-11 year olds, Scooter 
training for 7-11 year olds, National Cycle Training for 9-11 year olds, Sustrans Active 
Journeys, Walking buses and Accompanied walks.   

 
 
 

Tudalen 22



 

Engineering 
 
Engineering interventions are a popular request and the County Council receives frequent calls for 
highway improvements which far outstrip the budget available.  The majority of these requests are 
related to road safety concerns and include calls for engineering measures such as traffic calming, 
junction improvements and specific pedestrian facilities such as new footways and pedestrian 
crossings.   
 
The budget available to bring forward engineering schemes is limited and the Council’s Executive 
Board adopted in February 2017 a two-stage model for assessing and prioritising requests for 
Highway Infrastructure and Road Safety Improvements.  The model enables an evidence-based 
approach to be taken so that all requests are considered objectively and fairly to ensure that the 
funding available is directed to the areas of greatest need.  Candidate schemes do not progress 
through Stage 1 of the assessment unless there is evidence of recorded personal injury accidents 
to justify further consideration.  
 
Stage 2 then involves a more in-depth analysis of accident details, including accidents involving 
vulnerable road users, the concentration of accidents together with a study of traffic, pedestrian 
and cycle flows to provide a prioritisation model to identify the most urgent projects.  
 
Recorded Personal Injury Accidents In Newcastle Emlyn 
 
The Council maintains an accident database which is based on information collated by Dyfed 
Powys Police regarding road traffic collisions which have resulted in personal injuries being 
sustained.  This provides a reliable source of information which can be used to analyse accident 
trends and identify accident cluster sites.   
 
The database also enables the comparative assessment of requests for highway improvement and 
the analysis of how an intervention might be reasonably expected to bring about a reduction in road 
casualties. 
  
An analysis of the Newcastle Emlyn area has been undertaken to identify recorded personal injury 
accidents recorded in the last five years by Dyfed Powys Police.  A report of the recorded personal 
injury accidents is included as Appendix A. 
 
The report indicates that there have been five personal injury accidents recorded in the five-year 
period 01/01/20017 to 31/12/2021.  These are summarised below: 
 
Reference Date Location Detail 
A014519 Mon 

18/02/19 
Sycamore 
Street. 

Passing vehicle’s wing mirror clipped pedestrian’s arm 
causing bruising. Slight injury. 

A041517 Tue 
09/05/17 

Sycamore 
Street 

V1 stationary on footway, passenger door opened into 
pedestrian walking on footway. Slight injury. 

A045817 Fri 
19/05/17 

Lane to Mart 
Car Park 

Passenger emerging from V2 struck by passing V1 
which failed to stop. Slight injury. 

AC07217 Sat 
07/01/17 

High Street Pedestrian’s arm clipped by wing mirror of passing 
vehicle. Slight injury. 

A093119 Wed 
02/10/19 

High St to 
Aber Arad 

V1 turned into path of V2. Two Casualties, slight 
injuries. 

 

Tudalen 23



 

 
There is a time lag between collisions occurring and the details being available within the database 
while Police investigations are undertaken, data is checked and verified by the Police, and then 
transferred to the County Council.   
 
It is noted that an incident occurred in June 2022 which involved two pedestrians being struck by a 
vehicle whilst using a pedestrian crossing on College Street. The details of this incident are not yet 
available within the County Council’s database.  
 
From the information that is currently available to the Council, it is noted that four of the five 
recorded accidents involved pedestrians.  Two of these accidents occurred on Sycamore Street 
but in different locations and with different circumstances. Two of the accidents also involved 
pedestrians’ arms being clipped by passing vehicles, but again in different locations.  
 
Newcastle Emlyn has a historic streetscape which adds to the attractiveness of the town.  In 
common with many other historic towns this does often mean that the streets are of limited width 
with narrower footways.  This can create a tension with the demands of a modern vehicular-based 
society.  The limited geometry of the streets does restrict the opportunities to widen footways, as 
is the case in many of the streets in Newcastle Emlyn’s Town Centre.   
 
Where a widening of footways is viable, and justified, localised improvements can be considered 
but the wholesale widening of footways and the removal of drop kerbs would not be practical or 
affordable.  
 
To put the rate of accidents in context, the main A475 through Newcastle Emlyn will typically carry 
in the order of 5,000 vehicles each day.  This equates to around 9 million traffic movements over 
the 5 year study period through a busy town centre. 
 
Speed limits 
 
Existing Limits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 24



 

 

 
 
The area of concern raised by petitioners is largely subject to a 20mph which has been in place 
during the five-year period of the accident report.  The A484 is currently subject to a 30mph limit. 
 

Tudalen 25



 

Proposed Limits 

 
Legislation regarding speed limits in residential urban areas is set to change on the 17th September 
2023 which will reduce the current default 30mph limit on restricted roads down to 20mph.   
 
Consultation regarding the implementation of this new legislation is underway but it is currently 
proposed that this will reduce a section of the A484 from 30mph down to 20mph. 
 
This legislative change will require a fundamental change in driver behaviour and national 
campaigns supported by local initiatives will be put in place ahead of the September 2023 change.  
This change in speed limit regime and the public messaging which will support it will have a wider 
impact on driver behaviour to improve road safety and create safer environments for more walking 
and cycling. 
 

Tudalen 26



 

Pedestrian Crossings 
 
The introduction of pedestrian crossing facilities are a popular request to the Council and each 
case is looked at on its merits.  Local Authorities are assisted in assessing the case for introducing 
pedestrian crossing facilities by the Department for Transport’s Traffic Signs Manual Chapter 6 
Traffic Control 2019.      
 
The Manual explains that pedestrians are free to cross the road where they like and, where there 
are sufficient gaps in traffic and traffic speed is reasonably low, many people cross without needing 
a specific crossing point.  However, as vehicle flow and traffic speed increase pedestrians, 
particularly more vulnerable people, may find crossing harder and a dedicated facility may be 
appropriate.   
 
There are three main types of crossing facility: 

a) Uncontrolled or informal crossings which may have just dropped kerbs or a central refuge. 
b) Zebra crossings which give pedestrians the right of way and requires drivers to stop. 
c) Signalised crossings such as a Puffin crossing. 

 
The Manual explains that each type of crossing has advantages and disadvantages and the type 
chosen should be appropriate for the circumstances but also points out that the provision of a 
crossing alone will not necessarily lead to an improvement in safety. 
 
The Manual provides a framework for assessing whether a pedestrian crossing facility would 
provide benefit to road users for their ease of movement and to reduce danger, and if so, what type 
of crossing might be most suitable.   
 
In Newcastle Emlyn the crossing points in the town are largely informal and pedestrians will 
normally exercise appropriate care when crossing the road.  Formal crossing facilities are then 
provided at the following locations: 
 
Road Location Facility 
A475 Emlyn Street By Plough Hotel Zebra Crossing 
A475 College Street By Police Station Zebra Crossing 
A484 Old Graig Street Route to School Puffin Crossing 

 
Evidence required for an assessment will include existing crossing facilities, vehicle flows, 
composition and speeds, pedestrian flows and composition, site characteristics and road accident 
data. 
 
It is noted that Newcastle Emlyn is an attractive and popular town for visitors, particularly during 
the summer months, but will be quieter during the winter months. 
 
It is therefore proposed that site assessments regarding pedestrian crossing points are further 
considered during the Spring when traffic and pedestrian numbers more neutral, ie, between the 
main peaks and troughs in numbers.    
 
It is also proposed that traffic surveys are undertaken to aid this assessment. 
 

Tudalen 27



 

Enforcement 
The enforcement of speed limits and inappropriate driving is a power only available to the Dyfed 
Powys Police.  The Council does work to support the Police and their Go Safe partnership 
regarding road safety campaigns and initiative such as Community Speed Watch. 
 
The Council does have some powers to enforce moving traffic offences such as driving in bus 
lanes, driving in pedestrian zones and certain restricted turning manoeuvres but such 
enforcement must be with an approved device.  The Council undertakes this enforcement 
through its camera car and through static traffic cameras.  
 
Recommendations 

1) That the contents of the report are noted. 
2) That the petitioners are notified of the report.  
3) Traffic surveys and pedestrian crossing assessments are undertaken at key locations within 

Newcastle Emlyn in the Spring 2023 and the petitioners advised of the findings.  
 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Yes 

Accident Report 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
Risk Management Issues 
Ensuring safety of road users as far as is reasonably practicable is a key objective and 
discussed throughout this report. 
 
Physical Assets   
The report recommends undertaking an assessment of pedestrian crossing facilities within 
Newcastle Emlyn.  This may lead to a bid for new crossing facilities which would be assessed 
and prioritised in accordance with adopted policy. 

 
  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:    S.G.Pilliner                                                                 Head of Highways and Transportation Services                          
 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE  
 

NONE 
 

YES 
 

NONE 
 

YES  

Tudalen 28



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:   S.G.Pilliner                                                 Head of Highways and Transportation                                               

 
1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  NO 

 
Scrutiny Committee   
Date the report was considered:-  
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 
 
 

 
2.Local Member(s) - N/A  
 
3.Community / Town Council – N/A  
 
4.Relevant Partners  - N/A 
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations -  N/A 

 
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

 

Include any observations here 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: NONE 
 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

 

Tudalen 29



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Her Majesty's Office (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

Colour-coding by SEVERITY        
Total Accidents  (5)

Fatal (0)
Serious (0)
Slight (5)
Other (0)

AccsMap version 6.1

Newcastle Emlyn

22/11/2022

1 : 5000

+ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau
cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg 
Ordnans
100023377 + Crown copyright 
and

Total Casualties (6)
Fatal (0)
Serious (0)
Slight (6)

Selected Range of Accidents 
between dates 01/01/2017 
and 31/12/2021

T
udalen 31



TRAFFMAP INTERMEDIATE ACCIDENT REPORT Run on:
22/ 11/2022

AccsMap - Accident Analysis System

(60) months

Notes:

Newcastle Emlyn

Selection:

toDetails of Personal Injury Accidents for Period - 
31/12/202101/01/2017

Police Ref. Location Description

Road No.

Grid Ref.

Day

Date

Time

D/L

R.S.C

Weather

Speed

Vehicles

Veh No  /  Type  /  Manv  /  Dir  /  Class

Casualties

Sex / Age / Sev

Account of 

Accident

2nd Road No.

Causation Factor:

AC07217 HIGH STREET    N/A                 N/A        

NEWCASTLE EMLYN   (N/A)

 231,080

 240,340

1 65Veh Goods < 3.5t Going ahead S N Ped M Slight
to

484R1: A

E

N

Wet/Damp

Unknown

07/01/2017

1415
hrs

20 mph

Saturday

MALE PEDESTRIAN WALKING ON PAVEMENT IN MIDDLE OF NEWCASTLE EMLYN, HEADING IN DIRECTION OF BRIDGE WHEN HIS 

RIGHT ARM WAS CLIPPED BY WING MIRROR OF BLUE V1 VAN DRIVING IN DIRECTION OF ROAD. NO OTHER DETAILS V1 KNOWN.

A041517 SYCAMORE STREET    N/A                 

N/A        NEWCASTLE EMLYN   (N/A)

 230,830

 240,640

1 47Veh Car Stopping S N Ped M Slight
to

484R1: A

E

N

Dry

Fine without high winds

09/05/2017

1200
hrs

20 mph

Tuesday

V1 WAS DROPPING OFF A FRIEND AT NO.11 SYCAMORE STREET. DRIVER V1 SLIGHTLY MOUNTED KERB TO DROP HIS FRIEND OFF 

WHO IS UNWELL CLOSER TO THE DOOR. DRIVER V1 NOTICED A MALE WALKING CLOSE. DRIVER V1 TOLD HIS FRIEND TO WAIT 

UNTIL MALE PASSED BEFORE GETTING

A045817 TO MARKET FROM POLICE STATION    

N/A                 N/A        NEWCASTLE 

EMLYN   (N/A)

 230,700

 240,610

1Veh Car Going ahead NW SE
to

2 66Veh Car Parked 0 0 Ped M Slight
to

R1: U

E

N

Dry

Fine without high winds

19/05/2017

0900
hrs

30 mph

Friday

Very LikelyVehicle 001Other1st:

Confidence:Participant:
Causation Factor:

INCIDENT OCCURRED ON U/C ROAD - A CUT THROUGH ROAD LEADING TO CAR PARK. V2 PARKED STATIONARY & I.P WAS 

ATTEMPTING TO GET OUT OF V2 & IN DOING SO, V1 BEEPED HORN AT HIM.(CONFIRMED BY WITNESSES). I.P THEN STOOD TIGHT 

AGAINST DRIVER SIDE OF V2 & V1 DRIVEN V

ERY CLOSE ALONG V2 & MADE CONTACT WITH I.P V2 WITH PASSENGER SIDE OF V1, ROLLING HIM ALONG V2. I.P. V2 THEN 

FALLEN TO GROUND & V1 DRIVEN OFF AT SPEED. INCIDENT WITNESSED BY SEVERAL WITNESSES. DRIVER V1 LOCATED LATER 

ON.

1Carmarthenshire County CouncilRegistered to:

Tudalen 32



TRAFFMAP INTERMEDIATE ACCIDENT REPORT Run on:
22/ 11/2022

AccsMap - Accident Analysis System

(60) months

Notes:

Newcastle Emlyn

Selection:

toDetails of Personal Injury Accidents for Period - 
31/12/202101/01/2017

Police Ref. Location Description

Road No.

Grid Ref.

Day

Date

Time

D/L

R.S.C

Weather

Speed

Vehicles

Veh No  /  Type  /  Manv  /  Dir  /  Class

Casualties

Sex / Age / Sev

Account of 

Accident

2nd Road No.

Causation Factor:

A014519 SYCAMORE STREET    N/A                 

N/A        NEWCASTLE EMLYN   (N/A)

 230,860

 240,672

1 21Veh Minibus Going ahead NE SW Ped F Slight
to

475R1: A

E

N

Dry

Fine without high winds

Daylight:street lights present

18/02/2019

1145
hrs

20 mph

Monday

PEDESTRIAN WALKING ON PAVEMENT ADJACENT TO ROAD THROUGH SYCAMORE STREET, WHEN PASSING V1'S WING MIRROR 

STRUCK PEDESTRIAN TO RIGHT ELBOW CAUSING BRUISING. IDENTITY OF OFFENDING V1 NOT KNOWN. NO CCTV IN LOCALITY.

A093119 HIGH STREET    N/A                 N/A    

TO ABERARAD    NEWCASTLE 

EMLYN   (N/A)

 231,118

 240,338

1 77Veh Car Turning right W S Dri M Slight
to

2 51Veh Car Going ahead RH bend E NW Dri F Slight
to

484R1: A

E

N

Dry

Fine without high winds

Daylight:street lights present

02/10/2019

0740
hrs

30 mph

Wednesday

R2: B 4333

Very LikelyVehicle 001Failed to look properly1st:

Confidence:Participant:
Causation Factor:

V1 CROSSED IN PATH OF V2 WHILST TURNING RIGHT FOR B4333 WHICH RESULTED IN COLLISION. (CASUALTIES - SEATBELT 

WORN BUT NOT INDEPENDENTLY CONFIRMED)

2Carmarthenshire County CouncilRegistered to:

Tudalen 33



TRAFFMAP INTERPRETED LISTING Run on:
22/ 11/2022

AccsMap - Accident Analysis System

(60) months

Notes:

Newcastle Emlyn

Selection:

andAccidents between dates
31/12/202101/01/2017

Accidents involving:

Motor vehicles 

only (excluding 

2-wheels)

2-wheeled motor 

vehicles

Pedal cycles

Total

Fatal Serious Slight Total

Casualties:

Vehicle driver

Passenger

Motorcycle rider

Cyclist

Pedestrian

Total

Fatal Serious Slight Total

 5

 5 0 0  5

 0 0 0 0

 0  0  0  0

 0  0  5

 0  0  2  2

 0  0  0  0

 0  0  0  0

 0  0  0  0

 0  0  4  4

 6 6 0  0

Horses & other

Other

 0  0  0

 0  0  0  0

 0

6Carmarthenshire County CouncilRegistered to:

Tudalen 34



 

 
 

Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM GRONFA FFYNIANT 
GYFFREDIN Y DU 

 

Y Pwrpas: 
Rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y gwaith paratoi parhaus ar gyfer y Gronfa Ffyniant 
Gyffredin a chymeradwyo'r camau a gymerwyd hyd yn hyn, a'r camau arfaethedig, i sicrhau 
bod y sir yn elwa o'r rhaglen fuddsoddi newydd hon. 
 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 

1) Cymeradwyo'r camau a gymerwyd hyd yn hyn, a'r camau arfaethedig, i alluogi 
swyddogion i barhau â'u gwaith paratoi ar gyfer darparu'r cyllid, h.y. rhoi prosesau a 
gweithdrefnau cyflawni ar waith a datblygu cytundebau cyfreithiol ffurfiol yn ôl yr angen.  

2) Cymeradwyo'r cais arfaethedig a'r broses o wneud penderfyniadau. 
3) Cymeradwyo hyblygrwydd yn y cyllidebau gwaith fel y gellir gwneud mân newidiadau 

drwy ymgynghori â'r Adran Gyllid a'r Bartneriaeth Adfywio.  

4) Dirprwyo awdurdod i'r Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
lofnodi'r prif brosiectau a nodwyd yn dilyn argymhelliad y Bartneriaeth Adfywio. 

5) I fwrw 'mlaen â'r risg o agor galwadau am bob cais cyn ymrwymo i Gytundeb Lefel 
Gwasanaeth ffurfiol â Chyngor Abertawe  

6) Dirprwyo awdurdod i'r Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
gymeradwyo prosiectau hyd at £100,000. 

7) I fynd ymlaen mewn perygl gyda recriwtio staff ar gyfer y timau Angor mewnol a thîm 
Rheoli Rhaglenni er mwyn galluogi'r rhaglen i ddechrau cyn gynted â phosib. 

 
Y Rhesymau:  
 

Mae Cronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin y DU yn rhan ganolog o agenda Ffyniant Bro Llywodraeth y 
DU. Mae dyraniad cyllid o £38.6 milwin wedi'i gadarnhau ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin a fydd yn 
ein galluogi i gyflawni rhai o amcanion strategol y sir. I ddatgloi'r cyllid hwn, mae'n rhaid i 
Lywodraeth y DU gymeradwyo Cynllun Buddsoddi Rhanbarthol y De-orllewin a gyflwynwyd 
erbyn y dyddiad cau, sef 1 Awst 2022. 
 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad                    OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                    NAC OES      

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  
Y Cynghorydd Gareth John, yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a 
Thwristiaeth 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Jason Jones 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Helen Morgan 

Swyddi: 
Pennaeth Adfywio  
 
Rheolwr Datblygu 
Economaidd 

Rhifau ffôn/ Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
jajones@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
HLMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

CABINET
30 IONAWR 2023

Tudalen 35

Eitem Rhif  7

mailto:jajones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:HLMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

UPDATE ON THE UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUND (UKSPF 
1 BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 
Progress to date 
 
Since the report to Cabinet on 31st October 2022 where the proposed Anchor projects and the 
steps taken to date were approved, work has continued at pace to put the processes and 
procedures required to deliver the funding.  
 
The approval for the Regional Investment Plan was originally due at the end of October but 
was delayed until after the Autumn Statement on November 17th.  In December, Swansea 
Council, as the lead Authority for the South West region, received formal agreement from UK 
Government which was accepted on the 23rd December. This means that the funding is now 
formally secured for the region. 
 
Officers across the region are doing as much preparatory work as possible on legal 
agreements etc, so that delivery can commence as soon as practicable. 
  
Anchor Projects and Standalone Projects 
 
Following approval by Cabinet on the delivery model for implementation of the funds, much 
progress has been made in the development of the Anchor projects.  
 
Once the detail of the Anchor projects has been fully approved, the teams will be in a position 
to open calls for the third party grants. Competitive bidding rounds will then be opened where 
organisations will be invited to fill these gaps in delivery by submitting applications for 
standalone projects. Flexibility will be needed so that budget virements within and amongst 
themes can be made in order to deliver the requirements of the Local Investment Plan. 
 
Application and Approval Process 
 
An application form and assessment criteria for the Anchor and Standalone projects can be 
seen in Annex 1 & 2. A guidance document to assist applicants is also being prepared by the 
Lead Local Authority and will be available shortly. The Regeneration Partnership and sub 
groups have been consulted during the development of these documents.  
 
We have consulted with our colleagues in internal audit and developed a flow chart that 
documents the proposed stages in the approval of the Anchor and Standalone projects in 
Carmarthenshire. The flow chart can be seen in Annex 3.  
 
Multiply 
 
As part of its UK SPF allocation, Carmarthenshire has £6.68m budget for Multiply. This is the 
new adult numeracy programme. We are working with our colleagues in the Education 
department, Coleg Sir Gar and wider stakeholders on options to best deliver this programme 
through a partnership approach. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 36



 

 
 
 

  

2. OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE AND THEIR PROS AND CONS 
 
The UK Government has allocated funding over the next 3 years which will help address some 
of the challenges facing the County. With funding from EU programmes ending, the UKSPF 
presents an opportunity to draw down further investment into the County. 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  
 

Detailed Report and Annex 1,2 and 3 

Tudalen 37



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:                                                                   Head of   Regeneration                       

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

YES  
 
 

YES  
 

YES  NONE 
 
 

 

YES  
 

YES  
 

NONE 
 
 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
 
The Shared Prosperity Fund provides an opportunity to draw down additional investment 
which will help deliver against some of the County’s key strategic objectives. 
 
In order to draw down the funding, a Regional Investment Plan was submitted to UK 
Government setting out how the Region intends to utilise the funding based on local needs 
and opportunities. A Carmarthenshire Investment Plan was developed which fed into the 
Regional Plan.  
 
The Investment Plan for Carmarthenshire is based on our existing strategies and plans 
including the Economic Recovery Plan, Local Innovation Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment, 
and the South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan. The Carmarthenshire Plan is 
aligned to the 7 Well-being goals of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. 
 

Tudalen 38



 

2.Legal   
Local government is being given responsibility for delivery of the UKSPF.  Swansea Council 
will act as the ‘lead local authority’ for the South West region and will have overall 
accountability for the funding and how the Fund operates.  
 
Delivery and management of the programme in Carmarthenshire will be the responsibility of 
the Authority. This will include assessing and approving local project applications, entering 
into funding agreements with third parties as well as processing payments and day-to-day 
monitoring.  
 
Appropriate agreements will be put in place between the Regional lead and the Authority 
which will set out agreed roles and responsibilities. Swansea Council as the Lead Authority is 
currently drafting a Service Level Agreement. Our Authority’s legal team is being consulted on 
this.  
 
At a project delivery level, the Authority will enter into a funding agreement with all delivery 
partners. These will be developed in conjunction with the Authority’s legal team at the 
appropriate time 
1. Finance   

 
Whilst Swansea Council will act as the accountable body for the region and receive the 
Region’s allocation via UK Government, delivery and management of Carmarthenshire’s 
allocation will remain the responsibility of the Authority with Chris Moore as Senior 
Responsible Officer. 
 
A dedicated Programme Management Team will be established at a County level to 
undertake the necessary fund administration. Grant management processes and procedures 
will be established to ensure that the funding is managed in accordance with the fund 
requirements. This will involve the establishment of funding agreements with third parties as 
well as the establishment of procedures for processing payments, monitoring of financial 
spend, audit requirements etc. These will be developed in conjunction with Corporate 
services. 
 
The working budgets for the SPF Themes in Carmarthenshire are detailed in the full report, 
these however, may change as the programme commences and flexibility will be needed so 
that virements made within and amongst themes can be made in order to deliver the 
requirements of the Local Investment Plan. These adjustments will be decided with input from 
the Senior Responsible Officer and the Regeneration Partnership with Cabinet being kept fully 
informed.  
 
 
5. Risk Management Issues 
 
A programme level risk management process will be developed to ensure that risk is 
assessed and managed at all levels. 
 
 

Tudalen 39



 

 
  

 
Individual risk registers will be maintained at project level together with appropriate mitigation 
measures.  
7. Staffing Implications 
 
To manage the UKSPF at a local level, a dedicated Programme Management will need to 
be established to ensure that the necessary processes and procedures are put in place to 
administer the UKSPF. This team will sit within Economic Development.   
 
The UKSPF provides for circa 4% of resources to be used to fund administrative support 
for the programme.  
 
Work has been progressing in drafting the staffing structure and associated job 
descriptions. It is proposed that the recruitment starts at risk, whilst the formal Service 
Level Agreement between Swansea Council and this Authority is finalised. The risk will be 
minimal as the allocation for Carmarthenshire has been approved by UK Government.  

Tudalen 40



 

CONSULTATIONS 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:     Jason Jones                                                             Head of  Regeneration                                            

 
(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against 
the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  Yes 
 
Scrutiny Committee  Homes, Community and Regeneration 
Date the report was considered:- 26.01.23 
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 
 
A verbal update will be provided at the Cabinet meeting being held on the 30.01.23 

 
2.Local Member(s)   
Local Members were given an opportunity to feed into the original consultation on the 
development of the Local Investment Plan which provides the steer for the delivery of the 
UKSPF at a local level. The proposed modes of delivery identified take into account the 
priorities as outlines within the Investment Plan. Once the programme is formally approved 
local members will be informed of the opportunities available under SPF. 
 
3.Community / Town Council  
Town and community councils have also been given an opportunity to input the Local 
Investment Plan process. Once the programme is formally approved Community and Town 
Councils will be informed of the opportunities available under SPF. 
 
4.Relevant Partners   
Various stakeholders were given an opportunity to input into the development of the Local 
Investment Plan and to identify priorities for funding. In addition, the Carmarthenshire 
Regeneration Partnership has been established which includes representation from 
business, public and third sector to provide expertise and oversight into the UKSPF 
process at a local level. The Regeneration Partnership and thematic sub groups have been 
involved in discussions relating to the development of the Anchor Teams and have also 
been consulted on the application and assessment paperwork.  
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
N/A 

 

Tudalen 41



 

CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES 

Include any observations here 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund Prospectus  

 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-
shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-
prosperity-fund-prospectus  

   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 42



 

Update on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
To provide an update on the preparatory work for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
and to endorse steps taken to date, and proposed, to ensure that the County 
benefits from this new investment programme. Within the October report it was 
documented that we would provide Cabinet with a further update on progress, 
specifically in relation to the Anchor projects and the application and decision making 
processes by the end of the year 
 
2.0 Progress to date 
 
Since the report to Cabinet on 31st October 2022 where the proposed Anchor 
projects and the steps taken to date were approved, work has continued at pace in 
developing the Anchor projects and putting processes and procedures in place to 
deliver the funding 
 
Approval of the Regional Investment Plan was originally due at the end of October 
but was delayed until after the Autumn Statement on November 17th.    UK 
Government issued a press statement in November advising that all investment 
plans have been approved. Subsequently, Swansea Council, as the lead Authority 
for the South West region, has received formal agreement from UK Government 
which was accepted on the 23rd December. This means that Carmarthenshire’s 
funding allocation as well as that for the wider region has been formally secured. 
 
Officers across the region continue to meet on a weekly basis in order to do as much 
preparatory work as possible so that delivery can commence as soon as practicable 
once formal UK Government approval is granted and the UK SPF regional working 
group continues to meet weekly for this purpose.  
 
As Swansea Council has now received formal agreement from UK Government, 
work has begun in drafting legal agreements with each of the other authorities in the 
region, so that local delivery can commence. The Authority’s legal team will be fully 
consulted in this process. Whilst the legal agreements are being developed, it is 
requested that at a local level we proceed at risk with the recruitment of staff for the 
internal Anchor teams and Programme management team and that we commence 
with opening up calls for all applications prior to entering into a formal Service Level 

Tudalen 43



 

Agreement with Swansea Council. This will ensure that we can launch the 
programme as soon as possible at a local level.  
 
The delay in approval has subsequent knock-on effects on the time available for 
delivery which is already challenging. UK Government have stipulated that all activity 
in relation to UK SPF must be complete by March 31st, 2025.  
 
As Lead Authority, Swansea Council is putting in place a communication plan in 
consultation with the other local authorities. This includes regular press releases to  
inform all interested parties of the opportunities available to them under UK SPF as 
well as the creation of a website which each of the authorities will link into. 
 
Following Cabinet approval in October to establish a Programme Management Team 
in Carmarthenshire, a team structure and job descriptions are being prepared so that 
the recruitment process can proceed as soon as possible to enable the programme 
to commence. Once established this team will provide regular programme updates 
and monitoring reports to the Regeneration Partnership and to Cabinet 
 
 
3.0 Anchor Projects and Standalone Projects 
 
Following approval by Cabinet in October on the delivery model for implementation 
of the funds, i.e. Anchor projects, Standalone projects and Commissioned projects, 
much progress has been made in the development of the Anchor projects. As a 
reminder the Cabinet agreed to approve the following themed Anchor projects: 
 
Community Anchor 
 
Sustainable Communities will provide a third party grant to support the development 
and creation of activities aligned to the following themes. 
 
• Poverty 
• Circular Economy 
• Wellbeing / Leisure  
• Access to Services 
• Environment and Green  
• Tourism, Culture / Heritage 
• Community Engagement 

The Anchor project will also include additional budget for commissioning external 
expertise to provide strategic support. 

 
Rural Anchor 
 
The Rural Anchor will consist of 3 elements: 
 
Ten towns initiative - Support will be delivered via a third-party grant scheme to 
support the realisation of projects identified within the economic growth plans for the 
respective areas. The Anchor project will include a budget to commission external 
expertise to provide strategic support. 

Tudalen 44



 

 
Rural Innovation fund – a targeted fund that will provide opportunity to pilot, scope 
and test new innovative ideas that could be further developed through 
mainstreaming opportunities.  
 
Hwb Fach y Wlad - Dedicated rural customer services officers will be available to 
support rural residents by developing provision across our rural market towns to 
support the needs of residents to access support, advice and information 
 
Place Anchor: 
 
The Place Anchor would look to support town centres through a Vacant Property 
Fund, a Town Centre Events Fund and a package of support to deliver key projects 
identified in our Town Centre Recovery Plans to address the ongoing challenges. 
 
Supporting Local Business Anchor: 
 
The Supporting Local Business Anchor will offer financial support to local businesses 
to support them in all stages of their development through Business start-up and 
Growth Grants, a Business Renewable Energy Fund and also a Property 
Development Fund.  
 
In addition, a key focus will be supporting Carmarthenshire businesses to benefit 
from public procurement spend 
 
Employability & Skills Anchor: New streamlined employability programme are 
being developed and there will be a focus on activity outside the remit of the RLSP 
and the Swansea Bay City Deal Skills and Talent project. 
 
 
As the Anchor teams will be managing major parts of the investment plan – primarily 
by offering third party grants to organisations, it is imperative that these projects are 
developed in consultation with stakeholders to ensure that they add value to current 
and proposed provision delivered by UK Government, Welsh Government, and other 
organisations. The thematic sub groups of the Regeneration Partnership have been 
established to ensure that we have wider stakeholder involvement in the 
development of the Anchor projects. 
 
Officers are meeting both internally and as a region to develop these projects to 
ensure that as well as meeting local need there is also as much commonality across 
the region as possible.  
 
Once the precise detail of the Anchor projects is fully worked up, the Programme 
Management Team within Carmarthenshire, in consultation with the theme sub-
groups and the Regeneration Partnership will be in a position to determine whether 
there are further challenges identified in the Investment Plan that are not being 
covered. Competitive bidding rounds will then be opened where organisations will be 
invited to fill these gaps in delivery by submitting applications for standalone projects. 
 
The working budgets for the UK SPF themes in Carmarthenshire are as detailed 
below, these however, may change as the programme commences and flexibility will 
be needed so that virements made within and amongst themes can be made in order 

Tudalen 45



 

to deliver the requirements of the Investment Plan. These adjustments will be 
decided with input from the Senior Responsible officer and the Regeneration 
Partnership with the Cabinet being kept fully informed.  
 
UK SPF Theme Working Budget (4% administrative 

budget removed from figures below) 
Community & Place £10,240,933.76 
Supporting Local Businesses  £10,240,933.76 
People & Skills £10,240,933.76 
Multiply £6,413,012 

 
 
Current thinking is that 50% of the overall budget will be spent on the Anchor 
projects, these will be subject to detailed proposals. The remaining budget will be 
allocated to Standalone and Commissioned projects. 
 
4.0 Application and Decision Making Process 
 
The regional UK SPF working group has produced an application form and 
assessment criteria for the Anchor and Standalone projects. A guidance document to 
assist applicants is also being prepared by the Lead Authority and will be available 
shortly. The Regeneration Partnership and sub groups have been consulted during 
the development of these documents that can be seen in Annex 1 & 2. 
 
Following consultation with our colleagues in internal audit a flow chart that 
documents the proposed stages in the approval of the Anchor and Standalone 
projects in Carmarthenshire has been developed. The flow chart can be seen in 
Annex 3.  
 
Although Cabinet agreed the principle of the headline Anchor themes and 
constituted projects for each theme, there will be a requirement for an application 
form from each Anchor team detailing the proposed delivery with associated budget 
and indicators. The applications will then go through the stages detailed in the flow 
chart at Annex 3.  
 
It is therefore recommended that delegated authority sits with Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Tourism to approve the detail within the Anchor 
projects. This in line with Article 7.5 of Carmarthenshire County Council’s 
Constitution.  
 
Following full approval for the Anchor projects, delivery will commence, and the 
Anchor teams will be in a position to open calls for the Third Party Grants in 
accordance with the respective project proposals submitted to the Project 
Management Team. The application process for these will be determined by the 
Anchor teams themselves with input from the thematic sub groups, and application 

Tudalen 46



 

forms tailored to the individual grant schemes. The assessment process for these 
grants will be managed by the Anchor teams. 
 
Following assessment, final approval for these grants with a value up to £100k will 
be undertaken by Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Leisure, Culture and Tourism.  
The Cabinet and Regeneration Partnership will be kept fully informed of approvals 
through regular reports. Third Party Grants in excess of £100k will be taken to 
Cabinet for approval. 
 
Standalone projects of all values will go to full cabinet for approval. 
 
 
5.0 Multiply 
 
As part of its UK SPF allocation, Carmarthenshire has £6.68m budget for Multiply. 
This is the new adult numeracy programme to help transform the lives of adults 
across the UK by improving their functional numeracy skills through free personal 
tutoring, digital training, and flexible courses. We are working closely with our 
colleagues in the Education department, Coleg Sir Gar and wider stakeholders on 
options to best deliver this programme through a partnership approach. 
 
 
Conclusion 

 
A great deal of progress has been made since the Regional Investment Plan was 
submitted to UK Government earlier this year. With UK Governments recent 
announcement stating that the investment plans have been approved, work will 
continue at pace to formalise the arrangements and enable delivery to commence as 
soon as possible.  
 

Tudalen 47



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



   Page 1 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

 

 
 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund South-West Wales 
Application Form 

 
This form is for project applicants, applying for funding from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund in 
South-West Wales.  
 
When completing this form please refer to the General Guidance document. Please also 
complete Annex A – Outputs, Funding and Planning Workbook.  
 

PART 1 – APPLICANT INFORMATION  

1a) Project Name:  

1b) Provide start and end dates for the project   

1c) Applicant Organisation:        

1d) Please confirm the total value of the project: £ 

1e) Bid Manager Name and position:  

(Name and position of person with day-to-day responsibility for delivering the project) 

1f) Contact telephone number:        

1g) Email address:        

1h) Postal address:   

1i) Website:    

1j) Company Registration Number  

1k) Charity Registration Number   

1l) Vat Registration Number   

1m) Senior Responsible Officer contact details:  

1n) Please confirm the type of organisation:  

Tudalen 49



   Page 2 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

 
Please confirm that you have read and will comply with all aspects of 
the Fund branding and publicity requirements. 
 

Yes/No  

 
1p) Does any aspect of the project involve the provision of subsidies 
(or State Aid)?  
 

Yes/ No  

 

PART 2 – PROJECT SUMMARY  

[2a] Brief summary of activities or services you propose to deliver? (100 words max) 

 

 

[2b] Is the application being submitted in response to an open call grant funding opportunity or 

to apply for an anchor project?  ☐ Open Call   ☐ Anchor Project 

[2c] Please confirm below which investment priority is being covered by this project. Please 
select all that apply.  

☐ Communities and Place 

☐ Supporting Local Business 

☐ People and Skills 

☐ Multiply  
 

  

Local authority 

Private sector 

Voluntary sector 

University 

FE College 

Other (please specify) 

Other -   

 
1o) Branding & Publicity - Guidance on the branding and publicity requirements for the UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund is set out in the Fund Technical Note for Project Deliverers. 
 

Tudalen 50



   Page 3 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

[2d] Please confirm which UK Shared Prosperity Fund interventions you will deliver.  

Refer to Annex A Workbook (T1 – Outputs, T2 – Outcomes) for a list of interventions under 
each of the three investment priorities. 

 

2e) Please provide a list of your delivery partners and their role in the project  

 

[2f] Please provide a detailed description of the proposed activities and services.  

Your answer should explain what you propose to deliver, how activities will be delivered to 
meet the interventions listed in 1f, who the beneficiaries will be and where delivery will take 
place. If your application is being submitted in response to a need identified in an open call 
grant funding window, please specify how your proposed activities will address this need.  

(1500 words max) 

 

[2g] Please explain how your proposed activities aligns to the Regional Investment Plan for 
South-West Wales and how it delivers the objectives and interventions outlined by the UK 
Government. 

(750 words max) 

 

 

[2h] How does the proposal align with local needs and long-term strategic plans for local 
growth?  

 

[2i] Please indicate how your project activities fit with and adds value to existing UK 
Government, Welsh Government, Local Authority and other third-party provision. 

 

[2j] Please demonstrate how you have engaged with and secured support from appropriate 
local, regional and national stakeholders in the development of this project. (250 words) 

 

[2k] What are the implications if this project does not receive funding? (100 words)  

 

Tudalen 51



   Page 4 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

[2l] Which places will benefit from the activity? 

 

[2m] What are the key milestones for the implementation of the project?  

Please complete Annex A – T5 Delivery Milestones 

 

PART 3 – PROJECT IMPACT  

For questions 3a-3f, please describe in 500 words or less. Please be as concise as possible. 

[3a] Which groups will your project target?  

 

[3b] What will be the short- and long-term benefits of the project on its beneficiaries and the 

wider community?   

 

[3c] What UK Shared Prosperity Fund Outputs and Outcomes will the project deliver? In your 

response please also explain how these outcomes have been estimated and how they will be 

evidenced.  

Please describe below and complete Annex A Workbook (T1 – Outputs, T2 – Outcomes) for a 

list of interventions under each of the three investment priorities. 

 

[3d] How does the project support the Government’s Net Zero ambitions or wider 

environmental considerations? (This is not a requirement for proposals under the People and 

Skills theme) 

 

[3e] How does the project demonstrate innovation in service delivery?  

 

Tudalen 52



   Page 5 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

[3f] Please describe how you have considered the equalities impacts of your proposal, the 
relevant affected groups based on protected characteristics, and any measures you propose 
in response to these impacts. 

 

 

PART 4 – FINANCIAL   

 
4a] How much UK Shared Prosperity Fund investment is sought?   
 
Please also complete Annex A – T3 Funding Profile and T4 Expenditure Profile  
 

 

 
4b] Does the funding package include any match funding? If so, how much?  
When will any funding that is not in place be secured? 
 

 

 
4c] What will the funding package be spent on? Briefly summarise your planned expenditure here 
and complete Annex A with full breakdown. 
 

 

 

Source of funding Amount £ 

  

  

  

  

 
4d] How has the overall budget been estimated, what has been done to test that it is accurate, 
how would any unexpected costs be managed?  
 

 

  

Tudalen 53



   Page 6 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

4e] Please indicate how value for money will be achieved through the delivery of this project.  

 

 

PART 5 – PROCUREMENT  

Please limit your responses to each question to 750 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

5a] Please outline any elements of the project that you are likely to procure?  

As part of your response please note also: 

 Indicate the procurement strategy and route that you will follow. 

 Note guidance on SPF Procurement Route & Thresholds for private sector. 

 Confirm that the procurement route undertaken will meet Public Contract Regulations 2015 
and 2020 amendments. 

 Outline how you will successfully manage contracts to achieve agreed Key Performance 
Indicators. 

 

 

PART 6 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT & APPLICANT EXPERIENCE 

Please limit your responses to each question to 750 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

6a] How will you manage the project? If this is a multi-agency project, how will this be managed 
effectively?  

 

 

 

 

6b] Please describe the financial and performance monitoring systems and processes that will be 
used to robustly record project expenditure and outputs/outcomes.   

 

 

 

6c] What experience does the organisation have of delivering this type of activity?  

As part of your response please also: 

Tudalen 54



   Page 7 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

 Describe the resources and relevant expertise that the organisation has available now to 
deliver the project 

 If the organisation will need to recruit staff or appoint contractors what plans are in place to 
manage the risk of delay. 

 

 

 

 

PART 7 – PROJECT RISK MANAGMENT  

Please limit your responses to each question to 500 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

[7a] Summarise the key risks to the project below and describe the process and that will be used 
to monitor risk. Please also complete Annex A – T6 Risk Register 

 

 

PART  8 – EVALUATION  

Please limit your responses to each question to 500 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

[8a] It is important that projects are robustly evaluated, and that learning is shared with others.  

Please outline your approach to project evaluation, including: 

 How the project will be evaluated, in terms of how it was delivered and its impact on clients   

 How the findings of the evaluation will be disseminated  

 The amount spent on the Evaluation should be proportionate to the size of the project.   

 

 

 

PART 9 – EXIT STRATEGY  

Please limit your responses to each question to 500 words or less. Please be as concise as 
possible. 

Currently the UK Shared Prosperity Fund is operating to 31st December 2024   

[9a] Please outline your exit strategy. Consider what, if any, activities will continue and how these 
will be funded. 

 

Tudalen 55



   Page 8 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

 

 

PART 10 – SUBSIDY CONTROL  

All bids must also consider how they will deliver in line with subsidy control (or State Aid for aid in 
scope of the in Northern Ireland Protocol) as per UK Government guidance: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-
subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities 
 

 
[10a] Does any aspect of the project involve the provision of subsidies 
(or State Aid)?  
 

Yes/No  

[10b] If yes, briefly explain how the subsidies or state aid are compliant with the UK’s subsidy 
control regime as set out in the guidance. 

 

 

PART 11 – DATA PROTECTION  

 
Please note that the Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (the Department) 
will be a Data Controller for all UK Shared Prosperity Fund-related Personal Data collected with 
this form and submitted to the Department, and the control and processing of Personal Data.  

  
Each Lead Authority has been invited to run a local bidding process and will be a Data Controller 
for all UK Shared Prosperity Fund related Personal Data collected with the relevant forms as part 
of this process, and the control and processing of Personal Data, where such applications are 
not submitted to the Department for consideration.     
  
The Lead Authority (in Great Britain) and the Department will processes all data according to the 
provisions of the Data Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection Regulation 2018 
(UK GDPR) all applicable laws and regulations relating to processing of Personal Data and pri-
vacy, including, where necessary, the guidance and codes of practice issued by the Information 
Commissioner and any other relevant data protection regulations (together “the Data Protection 
Legislation (as amended from time to time)”).  
  
As a Processer of UK Shared Prosperity Fund-related Personal Data your organisation and the 
Lead Authority (when acting in Great Britain) must ensure that such Personal Data is processed 
in a way which complies with the Data Protection Legislation (as amended from time to time).   
  
By proceeding to complete and submit this form, you consent that the Lead Authority (in Great 
Britain) and its contractors where relevant, and the Department, and its contractors where rele-
vant, may process the Personal Data that it collects from you, and use the information provided 

Tudalen 56

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities


   Page 9 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

as part of the application to the Department for funding from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, as 
well as in accordance with its privacy policies. For the purposes of assessing your bid the Depart-
ment may need to share your Personal Data with other Government departments (such as the 
Department for Work and Pensions) and departments in the Devolved Administrations and by 
submitting this form you are agreeing to your Personal Data being used in this way.  

  
Data Controller, Personal Data, Personal Data and Processor all have the meaning given to them 
in the Data Protection Legislation (as amended from time to time).  
  
You can find more information about how the Department deals with your data here:  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-community-renewal-fund-prospectus  

 

PART 12 – PROJECT APPLICANT STATEMENT  

 
I declare that I have the authority to represent the project applicant in making this application.  
 
I understand that acceptance of this application form by the Lead Authority (in Great Britain) or the 
Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (the Department) does not in any way 
signify that the project is eligible for funding under the UK Shared Prosperity Fund or that any 
such funding has been approved towards it. 
On behalf of the project applicant and having carried out full and proper inquiry, I confirm to the 
Lead Authority (in Great Britain) and the Department that: 

 the project applicant has the legal authority to carry out the project; and 

 the information provided in this application is accurate. 

I also confirm to the Lead Authority (in Great Britain) and the Department that:  

I have informed all persons whose personal information I have provided of the details of the 
personal information I have provided to you and of the purposes for which this information will be 
used, and that I have the consent of the individuals concerned to pass this information to you for 
these purposes; 

I consent to the Personal Data submitted with this form being shared as set out in this form and in 
accordance with the Lead Authority’s Privacy Policies (in Great Britain) and the Department’s 
Privacy Policies; 

I shall inform the Lead Authority (for Great Britain projects) if, prior to any UK Shared Prosperity 
Funding being legally committed to the project applicant, I become aware of any further 
information which might reasonably be considered as material to the Lead Authority or the 
Department in deciding whether to fund the proposal; 

For Northern Ireland projects, I shall inform the Department if, prior to any UK Shared Prosperity 
Funding being legally committed to the project applicant, I become aware of any further 
information which might reasonably be considered as material to the Department in deciding 
whether to fund the proposal; 

Tudalen 57

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-community-renewal-fund-prospectus


   Page 10 of 10 
 
1.12.22 
Programmes & Projects/UK Shared Prosperity Fund/ 
SPF Application V1.3 WIP 

 

Any match funding that has been set out in part 3 will be in place prior to any award of UK Shared 
Prosperity Funding; and 

I am aware that if the information given in this application turns out to be false or misleading, the 
Lead Authority (where relevant) or Department may demand the repayment of funding and/or 
terminate a funding agreement pertaining to this proposal. 

I confirm that I am aware that checks can be made to the relevant authorities to verify this 
declaration and any person who knowingly or recklessly makes any false statement for the 
purpose of obtaining grant funding or for the purpose of assisting any person to obtain grant 
funding may be prosecuted. A false or misleading statement will also mean that approval may be 
revoked, and any grant may be withheld or recovered with interest. 

I confirm that I understand that if the project applicant commences project activity, or enters into 
any legally binding contracts or agreements, including the ordering or purchasing of any 
equipment or services before the formal approval of the project, any expenditure is incurred at the 
organisation’s own risk and may render the project ineligible for support.  
 

For and on behalf of the project 

applicant   

Name:  

 

Position   Date  

 
 

 

 

 

Tudalen 58



 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund South West Wales  - Assessment & Scoring Tool V1.2

PART 1 - APPLICANT INFORMATION - ELIGIBILITY CHECK

This section is to determine that the applicant information provided meets the criteria to become eligible to apply for the funding

Project Name:

Applicant Organisation

Project Value:

Part 1
Applicant Information and Eligibility Check
Please complete the assessment against the application selecting the appropriate answer from the drop down box available

Assessment
(drop down list)

Assessors Comments

1 Is the application from an organisation eligible to receive UK Shared Prosperity Fund support?
2 Will the project be complete by 31st December 2024? See Q1b
3 Is the application being submitted in response to an open call grant funding opportunity or to apply for an anchor project? See Q2b

4 Confirm below which investment priority is being covered? See Q1c
• Communities and Place
• Supporting Local Business
• People and Skills
   Multiply

5 Does the project confirm which UK SPF interventions will be delivered? See Q1d
6 Does the project respond to a need identified in a local open call to submit bids?  See Q1e
7 Does the project address a need identified in the Regional Investment Plan? See Q1f
8 Would the project duplicate or conflict with other local or national provision or policies? See Q1h
9 Is the proposed activity permissible within UK Subsidy Controls where relevant?

10 Will the project be delivered in accordance with branding requirements?

PASS /FAIL 

Assessment Result

Note If the answer to 3-8 is partial, if ineligible activity is removed is there still a viable project?
•If no, project does not meet the eligibility criteria. go straight to Part 4.
•If yes, proceed with the assessment and clarify the elements that should be removed from the project.

Final Result Finally, does the project meet the SPF criteria? Yes Move to Part 2 to continue 

DO NOT DELETE BELOW THIS LINE 
Yes

ASSESSOR GO TO PART 2 TO CONTINUE SCORING THE APPLICATION No
Partial 
PASS
FAIL

Anchor
Open Call

Page 1 of 6

T
udalen 59



SHARED PROSPERITY FUND ASSESSMENT AND SCORING TOOL

Part 1 - Applicant Information to Part 13 - Due Diligence

Question No. PART 1 Assessment Details & Comments
1e Bid Manager Name & Position Complete
1f Contact telephone no. Complete
1g Email Address Complete
1h Postal Address Complete
1i Website Complete
1j Company Registration No (where relevant) Complete
1k Charity Registration Number (where relevant) Complete
1l VAT Registation Number Complete
1m Senior Responsible Officer contact details Complete
1n Type of Organisation Complete

Private & Voluntary Sector Applicants - confirm you have attached a copy of the
applicant’s latest accounts.

Complete
1p Fund branding and publicity requirements confirmation Complete

1o Does any aspect of the project involve the provision of subsidies (or State Aid)? Complete

Question No. PART 2 - PROJECT SUMMARY Assessor Checks /Scoring % Details & Comments

2a Brief summary of activities of services you propose to deliver (100 words) Complete
2b Is this an Anchor project? Complete
2c Please confirm which investment priority is being covered by this project. Complete
2d Please confirm which UK Shared Prosperity Fund interventions you will deliver. Refer

to Annex A for a list of interventions under each of the three investment priorities - list
below:-

Communities & Place - W1 - W15 Yes
Supporting Local Business - W16 - W33 Yes
People & Skills  - W34 - W43 Yes
Multiply - W44 - W53 Yes

2e Detailed description of the proposed activities and services (1500 words max)
Your answer should explain what you propose to deliver, how activities will be
delivered to meet the interventions listed in 1f, who the beneficiaries will be and
where delivery will take place.

5

2f Please explain how your proposed activities link to the objectives and interventions
outlined by the UK Government and how it aligns to the Regional Investment Plan for
South West Wales.

5

2g How does the proposal align with local needs and long-term strategic plans for local
growth? (NB. Local plans to be referred to here)

5

The assessors check that the applicant has
completed each question by answering Complete,
Incomplete or Partially Complete to the
applicant's response.

The %age is automatically
calculated

Please list interventions (W's) to

Please note Value of project in
details & comments box

Page 2 of 6

T
udalen 60



2h Please indicate how your project activities fit with and adds value to existing UK
Government, Welsh Government, Local Authority and other third-party provision.

5

2i Please demonstrate how you have engaged with and secured support from
appropriate local, regional and national stakeholders in the development of this
project. (250 words)

5

2j What are the implications if this project does not receive funding? (100 words) 5

2k When will the project start? Complete
When will the project end? Complete

2l Which places will benefit from the activity? Complete
2m What are the key milestones for the implementation of the project? 5

SUB TOTAL = 35

PART 3 - PROJECT IMPACT Score %
3a Which groups will your project target? Complete

3b What will be the short and long term benefits of the project on its beneficiaries and
the wider community?

5

3c What UK Shared Prosperity Fund Outcomes will the project deliver? 5
3d How does the project support the Government’s Net Zero ambitions or wider

environmental considerations?
5

3e How does the project demonstrate innovation in service delivery? 5
3f Please describe how you have considered the equalities impacts of your proposal, the

relevant affected groups based on protected characteristics, and any measures you
propose in response to these impacts.

5

SUB TOTAL = 25

PART 4 - FINANCIAL
4a How much UK Shared Prosperity Fund investment is sought?  Please also complete

Annex B
5

4b Does the funding package include any match funding? If so, how much?
When will any funding that is not in place be secured?

5

4c What will the funding package be spent on? 5

4d How has the overall budget been estimated, what has been done to test that it is
accurate, how would any unexpected costs be managed?

5

4e Please indicate how value for money will be achieved through the delivery of this
project.

5

SUB TOTAL = 25

PART 5 - PROCUREMENT

Page 3 of 6

T
udalen 61



5a Please outline any elements of the project that you are likely to procure?
As part of your response please also:
• Indicate the procurement strategy and route that you will follow.
• Confirm that the procurement route undertaken will meet Public Contract
Regulations 2015 and 2020 amendments.
• Outline how you will successfully manage contracts to achieve agreed Key
Performance Indicators.

5

SUB TOTAL = 5

PART 6 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT & APPLICANT EXPERIENCE
6a How will you manage the project?

If this is a multi-agency project, how will this be managed effectively?
5

6b Please describe the financial and performance monitoring systems and processes that
will be used to robustly record project expenditure and outputs/outcomes.

5

6c What experience does the organisation have of delivering this type of activity?
As part of your response please also:
• Describe the resources and relevant expertise that the organisation has available
now to deliver the project
• If the organisation will need to recruit staff or appoint contractors what plans are in
place to manage the risk of delay.
• Lessons learned from delivery of CRF activity

5

SUB TOTAL = 15

PART 7 - PROJECT RISK MANAGEMENT
7a Summarise the key risks to the project below and describe the process and that will be

used to monitor risk. Please also complete Annex A (T6)
5

SUB TOTAL = 5

PART 8 - EVALUATION
8a It is important that projects are robustly evaluated, and that learning is shared with

others.
Please outline your approach to project evaluation, including:
• How the project will be evaluated, in terms of how it was delivered and its impact on
clients
• How the findings of the evaluation will be disseminated

5

SUB TOTAL = 5

PART 9 - EXIT STRATEGY
9a If you plan to continue delivery of activities beyond 31st December 2024 please tell us

how this will be funded, and what activities are likely to continue. 5
9b Do you plan to cease activities prior to 31st December 2024, if so what exit strategy

will you put in place?
SUB TOTAL = 5

Page 4 of 6

T
udalen 62



PART 10 - SUBSIDY CONTROL
10a Does any aspect of the project involve the provision of subsidies (or State Aid)? Yes

10b If yes, briefly explain how the subsidies or state aid are compliant with the UK’s
subsidy control regime as set out in the guidance.

Complete

PART 11 - BRANDING & PUBLICITY
11a Please confirm that you have read and will comply with all aspects of the Fund

branding and publicity requirements.
Yes

11b Data Protection consent? Yes

PART 12 - PROJECT APPLICANT STATEMENT
12a Signed on behalf of the project applicant i.e. name, position and date. Complete

Other (please describe) Complete

PART 13 - DUE DILIGENCE [INTERNAL USE ONLY ]

13a Has the project passed due diligence checks? Yes

Overall Quality Score = 100 100%

Overall Ranking = TBC

do not delete below this line 

YES
NO

COMPLETE
N/A

Page 5 of 6

T
udalen 63



Rating Criteria Score

Very Good

•  Demonstrates a very strong alignment to local and national priorities, evidence of need and local engagement.
•  Project offers very good value for money, unit costs per output/outcome are very good, with an exit strategy that
demonstrates sustainability post-grant funding
•  Complete confidence in deliverability and the achievement of proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  Very good prospects for project success

5

Good

•  Demonstrates a good alignment to local and national priorities, evidence of need and local engagement.
•  Project offers good value for money, unit costs per output/outcome are good, with an exit strategy that outlines the
potential to sustain the project post-grant funding
•  High level of confidence in deliverability and the achievement of proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  Good prospects for project success

4

Acceptable

•  Demonstrates an acceptable alignment to local and national priorities, evidence of need and local engagement.
•  Project offers reasonable value for money, unit costs per output/outcome are acceptable, with an exit strategy that
outlines some potential options for sustaining delivery post-grant funding.
•  Some acceptable weaknesses or deficiencies in deliverability
•  Reasonable level of confidence in deliverability and the achievement of proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  Reasonable probability of project success

3

Marginal

•  Demonstrates a basic but limited alignment to local and national priorities, evidence of need and local engagement.
•  Possibly capable of delivering and achieving proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  Project unlikely to offer value for money, unit costs per output/outcome are high, with an exit strategy that fails to
provide confidence in continuity post-grant funding
•  Some weaknesses or deficiencies
•  Limited level of confidence in deliverability and the achievement of proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  Possibility of project success

2

Poor

•  Demonstrates a very limited understanding of local need, engagement, or very limited ability to meet alignment to
local and national priorities
•  Major weaknesses or deficiencies
•  Project fails to offer value for money, unit costs per output/outcome are very high. Exit strategy is poor.
•  Very limited level of confidence in deliverability and the achievement of proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  Low probability of project success

1

Unacceptable

•  Fails to meet the criterion in all respects
•  Indicates a complete misunderstanding of, or non-compliance with, stated requirements
•  No Confidence in deliverability and the achievement of proposed outputs and outcomes.
•  No prospect of project success

0

Page 6 of 6

T
udalen 64



 

Approval Process for Carmarthenshire Anchor and 
Standalone projects

Completed application forms submitted 
to Programme Management Team from 

Anchor and Standalone Projects (in 
response to open calls)

Programme Management Team assess 
each application and produce initial 

recommendation

Applications and assessments presented 
to relevant thematic sub group for 

discussion and final recommendation 
discussed in Thematic meeting for 

discussion in n

Recommendations presented at 
Regeneration Partnership meeting for 

endorsement 

Final approval received from Cabinet 
member for third party grants within 

approved Anchor projects up to 
maximum £100k. Projects in excess of 

£100k as well as all standalone projects 
approved by Cabinet

Report notifying final approvals taken to 
Regeneration Partnership and Regional 

Directors for information

Annex 3

Annex 3

Tudalen 65



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 
 

CYMERADWYO ARFOR 2 (2022-2025) 
 

Y Pwrpas:  
 
Rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y rhaglen Arfor 2 a chymeradwyo'r camau a gymerwyd hyd 
yn hyn i sicrhau bod y sir yn elwa o'r rhaglen fuddsoddi newydd hon. 
  

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 
• Cymeradwyo'r camau a gymerwyd hyd yn hyn a fydd yn galluogi'r sir i elwa o'r rhaglen 

Arfor 2. 
 

• Awdurdodi'r gwaith o sefydlu trefniadau llywodraethu priodol i weithredu'r rhaglen ar lefel 
leol, gan gynnwys sefydlu'r grant trydydd parti Cymunedau Mentrus. 

 
Y rhesymau:  
 
Yn sgil llwyddiant cam cyntaf y rhaglen Arfor, mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo £11 
miliwn i ail gam y rhaglen Arfor ar draws pedair sir, sef Gwynedd, Sir Gaerfyrddin, Ceredigion 
ac Ynys Môn, hyd at fis Mawrth 2025. 
 
Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad:                    OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad:                          NAC OES  

Yr Aelod Cabinet Sy'n Gyfrifol Am Y Portffolio:           
Y Cynghorydd Gareth John, yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Jason Jones 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Rhian Phillips  

Swyddi: 
 
 
Pennaeth Adfywio  
 
 
Rheolwr Rhanbarthol – 
Datblygu Economaidd 
 

Rhifau ffôn / Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
 
 
jajones@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
mrphillips@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
  

CABINET
30 IONAWR 2023

Tudalen 67

Eitem Rhif  8

mailto:jajones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:mrphillips@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET  

30TH JANUARY 2023 
 

ARFOR 2 (2022-2025) APPROVAL 
 

ARFOR 1 
In 2019, following a budget agreement between the Welsh Government and Plaid Cymru, £2 
million was allocated to the Arfor programme to trial innovative methods of supporting the 
economy in the strongholds of the Welsh language of Gwynedd, Anglesey, Ceredigion and 
Carmarthenshire. 
 
ARFOR 2 
Based on the success of the first phase of the Programme, a further £11 million is being 
provided by Welsh Government until March 2025 to support the communities to flourish through 
economic interventions, which will also contribute to increasing opportunities to see and use the 
Welsh language on a daily basis. 
 
The key strategic objectives of Arfor 2 are:  

• To create opportunities for young people and families (under 35 years old) to stay in or 
return to their indigenous communities – supporting them to succeed locally by engaging 
in enterprise or developing a career 

• To create enterprising communities within Welsh-speaking areas – by supporting 
commercial and community enterprises that aim to preserve and increase local wealth by 
taking advantage of the identity and unique qualities of their areas. 

• To maximise the benefit of activity through collaboration– to ensure that good practice 
and lessons learnt are shared and that there is on-going monitoring to ensure continuous 
improvement. 

Strengthen the identity of communities with a high density of Welsh speakers – by supporting the 
use and visibility of the Welsh language, encouraging a sense of place and local loyalty. 
 
Arfor 2 comprised the following 5 work packages: 
 

• Llwyddo’n Lleol - Targeted youth programme to support entrepreneurial skills to deter 
youth migration  

• Cymunedau Mentrus/Enterprising Communities - Administered by Carmarthenshire 
County Council, creating opportunities for business start-up, growth and third sector 
development via a third grant aligned with Arfor objectives 

• Arfor Challenge Fund- Opportunity for organisations across the region to submit 
applications for resources to develop and pilot activities that will address the strategic 
objectives of the Programme. 

• Strengthening the Identity of Arfor Communities - Create a communication and marketing 
program for the Programme 

• Monitoring and Evaluation and learning 

Tudalen 68



 

GOVERNANCE  
As per the previous round of funding, Gwynedd County Council will continue to act as the lead 
authority for Arfor 2 and will lead on the procuring services to deliver each strand, other than 
Cymunedau Mentrus, which will be administered by Carmarthenshire County Council.  
 
OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE AND THEIR PROS AND CONS 
 
Welsh Government has allocated funding to the four Local Authority areas which were part of the 
initial Arfor programe. The funding is designed to help address some of the challenges faced 
across the County. Arfor 2 presents an opportunity to draw down further investment into the 
County as well support for businesses and organisations to grow and support the economy and 
the sustainability of the Welsh language. Carmarthenshire County Council could decide not to 
participate, although this would mean the loss of significant funding to the Welsh language 
communities of Carmarthenshire. 
 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 
 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other 
implications associated with this report: 
 
Signed:             Jason Jones                                          Head of Regeneration                             

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical Assets  
 

YES  
 

 

YES 
 

YES  
 

NONE 
 
 

 

YES  YES  NONE 
 

 

Tudalen 69



 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
 
The Arfor 2 Programme provides an opportunity to draw down additional investment which will help 
deliver against some of the County’s key strategic objectives. 
 
The objectives of the Arfor programme are: 

• to create opportunities for young people and families (under 35 years old) to stay in or return to 
their indigenous communities, supporting them to succeed locally by engaging in enterprise or 
developing a career 

• to create enterprising communities within Welsh-speaking areas, by supporting commercial 
and community enterprises that aim to preserve and increase local wealth by taking advantage 
of the identity and unique qualities of their areas 

• to maximise the benefit of activity through collaboration, to ensure that good practice and 
lessons learnt are shared and that there is on-going monitoring to ensure continuous 
improvement 

• strengthen the identity of communities with a high density of Welsh speakers, by supporting the 
use and visibility of the Welsh language, encouraging a sense of place and local loyalty 

The above is aligned with the county’s existing strategies and plans including the Economic Recovery 
Plan, Local Innovation Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment, and the South West Wales Regional 
Economic Delivery Plan and Corporate Strategy.  
 
The Programme will support the objectives of the Wellbeing & Future Generations Act by targeting 
interventions which aim to ensure that the Welsh speaking communities of the County remain vibrant 
and sustainable communities. 
 
The proposals are also in line with the objectives of Cymraeg 2050 in terms of increasing the use of 
the Welsh language, as well as creating favorable conditions for the Welsh language to flourish. 
 
2. Legal   
 
Gwynedd County Council will act as the lead body for the Arfor 2 programme, as per the previous 
programme. A legal agreement between the counties was established for the first phase of the 
Programme. This is currently being reviewed for Arfor 2. The Authority’s legal team will be 
consulted as part of this process. 
 
The Authority will be responsible for the delivery and management of the ‘Cymunedau 
Mentrus/Enterprising Communities’ work package at a local level. This will include assessing and 
approving local project applications and entering into funding agreements with third parties. These 
will be developed in conjunction with the Authority’s legal team at the appropriate time. 

Tudalen 70



 

3. Finance     
Overall accountability for the Programme will rest with Gwynedd County Council as lead Authority.  
 
The Authority we will be given direct responsibility for the delivery of a £1.25m, third party grant 
under the Cymunedau Mentrus/Enterprising Communities work package.  
 
A dedicated officer will be employed to undertake the necessary fund administration fully funded by 
the programme. Grant management processes and procedures will be established to ensure that the 
funding is managed in accordance with the fund requirements. This will involve the establishment of 
funding agreements with third parties as well as the establishment of procedures for processing 
payments, monitoring of financial spend, audit requirements etc. These will be developed in 
conjunction with the Council’s Corporate Services. 

 

5. Risk Management Issues 
A programme level risk management process will be developed by Gwynedd County Council as lead 
Authority to ensure that risk is assessed and managed at all levels. 
 
A specific risk register will be maintained for the Cymunedau Mentrus/Enterprising Communities work 
package with appropriate mitigation measures identified. 
 
6. Staffing Implications 
To ensure the effective delivery of the Programme at a local level, a dedicated officer will be recruited 
which will sit within Economic Development. Funding has been secured via the Arfor programme to 
fund this post. 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen 71



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as 
detailed below 
 
Signed:         Jason Jones                                                          Head of Regeneration                                                 

 
 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  NO 

 
Scrutiny Committee   
Date the report was considered:-  
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- 
 

 
2.Local Member(s)   
N/A 
 
3.Community / Town Council  
N/A 
 
4.Relevant Partners   
Gwynedd, Anglesey and Ceredigion County Councils.  Welsh Government 
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
N/A 

 
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES –Cllr Gareth John 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

Funding Letter from WG 
dated 2.12.2022 
 

 Will be located at County Hall  
 

Legal Agreement issued 
by Gwynedd County 
Council  

 Will be located at County Hall  
 

   
 

  

Tudalen 72



 

ARFOR 2 
 
1.0 Background 
In 2019, following a budget agreement between the Welsh Government and Plaid 
Cymru, £2 million was allocated to the Arfor 1 programme to trial innovative methods 
of supporting the economy in the strongholds of the Welsh language of Gwynedd, 
Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire. 
 
In Carmarthenshire, Arfor 1 was targeted at the food and creative industry sectors. A 
total investment of £500k was invested in 40 of businesses, which resulted in the 
creation of 40 new jobs and safeguarded 170 jobs in the local economy of 
Carmarthenshire. 
 
2.0 Lessons learned from Arfor I 
An evaluation of the overall Arfor programme identified the following key lessons: 

- Innovation and piloting of ideas should continue to be a key focus of any 
successor programme 

- The programme had an impact on supporting young people to establish and 
develop enterprises, thereby increasing the likelihood of keeping them in their 
local areas  

- The relationship between the economy and the language needs to be better 
understood and any future programme should place greater emphasis on 
research, monitoring and evaluation  

- Collaboration and the sharing of good practice and learning have been key 
features of the programme.  
 

3.0 Arfor 2 
Based on the success of the first phase of the Programme, a further £11 million has 
been secured until March 2025 to support the communities that are strongholds of 
the Welsh language to flourish through economic interventions which will also 
contribute to increasing opportunities to see and use the Welsh language on a daily 
basis. 
 
The key strategic objectives of Arfor 2 are:  

• To create opportunities for young people and families (under 35 years old) to 
stay or return to their indigenous communities – supporting them to succeed 
locally by engaging in enterprise or developing a career 

• To create enterprising communities within Welsh-speaking areas – by 
supporting commercial and community enterprises that aim to preserve and 
increase local wealth by taking advantage of the identity and unique qualities 
of their areas. 

• To maximise the benefit of activity through collaboration– to ensure that good 
practice and lessons learnt are shared and that there is on-going monitoring 
to ensure continuous improvement. 

• Strengthen the identity of communities with a high density of Welsh speakers 
– by supporting the use and visibility of the Welsh language, encouraging a 
sense of place and local loyalty. 

Tudalen 73



 

In April 2022, the Arfor Board which consists of the Leaders of the four Counties, 
submitted an 'Outline Proposal' to Welsh Government for the second phase of the 
Programme setting out the strategic objectives and principles of Arfor 2.  This was 
subsequently approved in principle. Over the last few months officers across the 
region have been working up more detailed proposals which were approved by 
Welsh Government prior to WG public announcement of the programme on 6 
October 2022. Confirmed via a funding letter received from Welsh Government 
dated 2.12.2022  

It is anticipated that Arfor 2 will commence December 2022. 

4.0 Arfor 2 Work packages 

Arfor 2 will consist of the following work packages which will meet the overall 
strategic objectives of the programme: 
 
Work Package   Budget Method of 

delivery 
Llwyddo’n Lleol  
Llwyddo’n Lleol is a targeted youth programme to 
support entrepreneurial skills. The project will 
support young people to start up a new business 
within their indigenous communities through a 
combination of support and financial assistance 
with the aim of encouraging young families to stay 
or return to the area. The project will be delivered 
across the four counties via a 3rd party contractor, 
managed by Gwynedd County Council. 
 

£ 3,000,000 
Regional 
project 
 

Procured 
delivery via the 
Regional lead 
(Gwynedd 
County 
Council) 
 

Cymunedau Mentrus/ Enterprising 
Communities 
The third party grant will consist of the following: 

• business start up fund 
• business growth fund  
• Social enterprise fund  

 
The fund will build upon the work which was 
undertaken under Arfor I and will focus on sectors 
that provide growth opportunities. 
 
Whilst the fund will be delivered locally, eligible 
activity will be agreed at a regional level to ensure 
consistency of approach. Funding secured via the 
will enable the Authority to employ a dedicated 
officer to manage and implement the fund at a 
local level. 
 

£ 4,500,000 
(£1,125,000 
allocation 
per County) 
 

Implementation 
in each 
individual 
county via a 
third party grant 

   

Tudalen 74



 

Arfor Challenge Fund 
The Challenge fund will consist of 2 elements: 
 
Small Challenge Fund -offering support and 
funding of up to £30,000 for local organisations to 
develop and pilot activities that will address the 
strategic objectives of the Programme. Delivery of 
the small challenge fund will be commissioned via 
Gwynedd County Council. The appointed 
contractor will work with each of the four areas to 
promote the opportunities available via the 
challenge fund and be responsibility for inviting 
and receiving applications for funding. 
 
Large Challenge Fund - a flexible fund that will 
offer up to £100k funding to organisations 
individually or jointly to develop and implement 
plans responding to the strategic objectives of the 
ARFOR Programme.  This element will be directly 
managed by Gwynedd County Council in liaison 
with the other three Local Authorities. The 
opportunity to bid for funding will be promoted to a 
cross section of organisations across the four 
Counties. 
 
All applications submitted for consideration as 
part of the Challenge Funds will be considered by 
an Officer working group comprising of the four 
authorities before being submitted to the Arfor 
Board. 
 

£ 2,600,000 
Regional 
project 

Activity will be 
available at a 
local level but 
managed at a 
regional level 
by Gwynedd 
County Council 

Strengthening the Identity of Arfor 
Communities 
Arfor 2 will build on previous work to promote 
good practice and to help businesses and 
community organisations to realise the economic 
benefits associated with the use of the Welsh 
language as part of their day to day business.  
This will done by further developing Bwrlwm Arfor 
(www.bwrlwmarfor.cymru)  an online platform to 
share best practice.  
 
A strategic marketing and communication plan will 
also be a key feature of the programme. 
 
 
 
 

£300,000.00 Administered 
regionally by 
Gwynedd 
County Council 
with input from 
each of the 
Counties 

   

Tudalen 75

http://www.bwrlwmarfor.cymru/


 

Monitoring and Evaluation and learning  
 
A key element of Arfor 2 will be monitor and 
evaluate the results and impact of the Programme 
from the outset. Gwynedd County Council will 
oversee the contract management however each 
Authority will have a valuable role to play in 
feeding into this process. This element of the 
programme will also seek to broaden our 
understanding of the links between the economy 
and the Welsh language. 
 
 

£200,000.00 Administered 
regionally by 
Gwynedd 
County Council 
with input from 
each of the 
Counties 

 
 
5.0 Programme Governance 
 
Gwynedd County Council will continue to act as the lead authority for the programme 
across the four local authority areas. A legal agreement between the counties has 
already been established for the first phase of the Arfor Programme. This is currently 
being reviewed for the 2nd phase and will be shared with the Corporate legal team for 
their input at the appropriate time. 
 
To provide strategic direction and oversee the delivery of Arfor II, a Board consisting 
of the Leaders of the four Counties has been established. To date, the Board has 
met on 2 occasions to consider and endorse the work which has been undertaken to 
date in the development of the programme.  
 
The Board will be supported by a Group of Officers comprising senior officers 
representing the four counties, together with representatives from the Welsh 
Government and the Welsh Local Government Association. 
 
The role of the officer group will be to ensure that there is continual input from a 
Carmarthenshire level at every part of delivery to ensure that the needs of our local 
businesses and communities are met. 
 
 
6.0 Conclusion 

Arfor 2 presents a further opportunity for the County to support communities to 
flourish through economic interventions which will also contribute to the 
strengthening of the Welsh language. By creating opportunities for young people and 
families to stay or return to their indigenous communities, the Programme will also 
address a key issue which currently faces our County. 

 

Tudalen 76



 

 
Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM Y STRATEGAETH 

WASTRAFF 
Y Pwrpas:  
Cyflwyno adroddiad  ar gynnydd y prosiect a'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ynghylch cyfnod 
interim Strategaeth Wastraff 2021 ac amlinellu polisïau rheoli gwastraff cysylltiedig cyn y 
newidiadau gwastraff interim a fydd yn cael eu cyflwyno ym mis Ionawr 2023.  

 
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
 

1. Nodi cynnydd a darpariaeth Strategaeth Wastraff 2021 
2. Cymeradwyo'r Polisi Gwastraff ac Ailgylchu 

 
Y Rhesymau:  
 
Rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am Strategaeth Wastraff 2021-2025 a'r gwasanaethau fydd yn 
cael eu cyflwyno ym mis Ionawr 2023 sydd ag amcan strategol clir o wella casgliadau 
gwastraff domestig wrth ymyl y ffordd ac o ganlyniad cynyddu cyfraddau ailgylchu yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin. Yn ogystal, crynhoi'r polisïau rheoli gwastraff presennol sy'n ofynnol er mwyn 
gwella perfformiad gweithredol a strategol.   
 
Angen i'r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad                           OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                          NAC OES 

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. Edward Thomas 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  
Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: Daniel John   
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
  
Geinor Lewis  
  
  
Yana Thomas  

Swyddi:  
Pennaeth Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Gwastraff 
ac Amgylcheddol  
  
Rheolwr Strategaeth a 
Pholisi Gwastraff  
  
Rheolwr Prosiect 
Trawsnewid Gwastraff  
  

 
 
Ffôn: (O1267) 228131  
DWJohn@sirgar.gov.uk   
  
  
Ffôn; (01267) 224565  
Gmlewis@sirgar.gov.uk   
  
Ffôn; (01267) 224565 
ylthomas@sirgar.gov.uk   

 
 

CABINET 
30 IONAWR 2023

Tudalen 77

Eitem Rhif  9

mailto:DWJohn@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:Gmlewis@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:ylthomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

CABINET  
30TH JANUARY 2023 

WASTE STRATEGY UPDATE 
Introduction 
 
Carmarthenshire County Council currently provides waste services to approximately 91,000 
households through the delivery of a fortnightly residual general waste collection and co-mingled 
kerbside recycling service as well as a weekly food collection. Kerbside bulky and garden waste 
are offered as chargeable services, in addition to a network of Bring-sites available for glass 
recycling in the main with provision for textiles and small electrical items at busier sites. 
 
Whilst the current service model has previously enabled the authority to exceed the statutory 64% 
target, we did fail to meet this last financial year, evidencing further change is required to meet 
this and the 70% target from 2024/25. 
 
The Carmarthenshire Waste Strategy 2021 – 2025 was approved by Cabinet in October 2021. 
This strategy outlines a comprehensive programme of works to deliver service transformational 
change to achieve 70% recycling by 2024/25, providing a base for further improvements to achieve 
zero waste by 2050 and working towards reducing the carbon impact of the service in line with our 
future carbon reduction ambitions. 
 
The strategy provides a phased approach to service change with an interim solution to be 
delivered in 2022, with a longer-term service change to achieve the Blueprint collection 
methodology by 2024. 
 
In February 2019 members unanimously resolved to declare a climate emergency and committed 
to become a net zero carbon local authority by 2030. The future waste service design presents a 
real opportunity for achieving this ambition. The Councils objective combined with current WG 
waste fleet aspirations mean that the Council has the opportunity to develop and maximise its 
ULEV fleet capacity to deliver the long-term strategy. As transport emissions make up a large part 
of the Councils overall emissions, this approach can deliver significant benefits to our overall 
carbon emissions. In addition, the development of the Eco- Park and potential for centralised depot 
at Nantycaws presents a real opportunity to develop new renewable energy production and 
charging infrastructure for the proposed Waste fleet and could unlock wider commercial charging 
potential.  
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 78



 

Interim Position  
 
The interim phase of the Wase Strategy will commence in November this year with the new 
collection methodology commencing for residents on the 23rd January 2023. This will comprise 
of: 

- Dry recycling [blue bags] collected weekly 
- Non-recyclable material [black bags] three black bags every three weeks, and the 
- introduction of a glass collection service to 95% of properties in Carmarthenshire for glass 

bottles and jars to be collected from kerbside every three weeks. 
- With food waste collection continuing to be collected weekly. 

 
This change has required the procurement of an additional 23 vehicles in total, with the 
introduction of the first three electric refuse collection vehicles into the fleet to support our wider 
objectives. The current fleet from the 23rd of January 2023 will be utilised to collect the dry 
recycling material on a weekly basis until the blueprint methodology is implemented in 2024, 
whereby new vehicles are required. 

Whilst the residual waste and glass recycling are collected by separate vehicles and crew, it was 
important to try and maintain a consistent waste collection day/week for the householder.  Due to 
the operational placement of vehicles in the three principal depots, and geographical spread of 
the county we have been unable to ensure that all households are collected on the same day, 
however by undertaking some changes to the blue bag recycling round, we have managed to 
achieve around 44% of households on the same day for collection for their Blue, Black and Glass 
collection. 

Waste collections currently are managed and operated from three different depots in the county 
based in Johnstown, Glanamman & Trostre. Due to the number of vehicles and the requirement 
for additional front-line employees [17 HGV drivers, 28 loaders] it has required a fourth depot to 
be introduced in Cross Hands for the interim measure, until an agreed option for location for the 
second phase of the strategy is agreed. The premises at Cross Hands has been leased for a 
period of two years following a successful planning application for the change of use for its 
intended use and the receipt of an operator’s license for the site. The glass and residual fleet will 
operate from this new depot. 

 
86,730 [95%] of properties in Carmarthenshire will be in receipt of glass collection from their home. 
Between Monday 21st November 2022 and Friday 20th January 2023, residents will be delivered 
a year’s supply of blue bags and food waste liners for the brown kitchen caddy, and a black 44L 
box for their glass bottles and jars. 

Residents will also receive an information pack through the post between the 14th November 2022 
and January 20th 2023 which will provide guidance and further information in relation to the 
changes, including the days of the week their collections will be collected and a calendar to assist 
with the black and glass three weekly collections. 

Tudalen 79



 

A robust engagement and communication plan has been developed to guide and assist residents 
in Carmarthenshire with the changes to their waste collections. Various communication strategies 
have been planned for pre and post roll out of the new service, to include social media campaigns, 
planned work to update the current website in relation to the changes, members seminars to 
ensure that members are fully informed of the changes to assist their constituents, posters to be 
installed at bus stop and FAQ’s on the website. 
 
As some residents will have their blue and black bags collected on different days of the week, we 
will be introducing a SMS and email notification service that residents will be able to sign up for. 
This service will send a reminder either via email or text message to the resident the evening 
before their collection day, to remind the resident of what commodity we will be collecting the 
following day. 
There are unfortunately 2,954 properties which will be unable to be serviced by the kerbside glass 
collection but we will be working at getting these onto the service in the near future. The reasoning 
that these properties have not been able to join the glass recycling scheme at this time, is for 
reasons such as: 

- the property is located in a long reach area and access via the 7.5t glass collection vehicle 
isn’t feasible from both size and health and safety. 

- The property is serviced by a private / non adopted road or 

- Access to the property is via narrow lanes, which are unsuitable for a 7.5t glass collection 
vehicle. 

As part of the service change we will be rationalising our network of Glass Bring Sites, we will 
continue to provide this service at strategic locations around the County during the interim period, 
to ensure residents who will not receive a kerbside collection will maintain access to glass 
recycling in their local community. 

 

Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
As of any service change, an Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed and measures 
have been put in place to ensure that these changes do not have a negative impact on 
Carmarthenshire residents. On the back of this assessment, we have developed a community 
engagement plan which is based on education and enforcement. Recycling advisors will be 
engaging with residents in person, targeting areas that we currently experience high contamination 
and low participation to recycling. Waste Wardens will be employed in time for the roll out in 
January 2023, to investigate noncompliance and enforce when needed if advice and guidance is 
not followed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 80



 

Finance  
 
The Council, like many others, is under increasing financial pressure following a difficult period 
through COVID-19 response and due to the ongoing national economic position with further impact 
on services imminent from Welsh Government revenue support reductions compounded further 
by the decline in the Single Revenue Grant for Environmental Services, which has been a key 
source of core funding for the Council’s Waste Services for many years. Given that we are at a 
low-cost base for collection under the current regime due to the operation of a single collection 
fleet, any switch to an alternative system to accommodate a weekly collection of Dry Recycling is 
going to be costly from a fleet and resource perspective. However, there is capital financial support 
from Welsh Government for Local Authorities in undertaking waste service change to Blueprint 
compliant collections. 
 
We have been working with colleagues in Welsh Government to develop the opportunity for 
support funding, developing and submitting a business case for consideration. 
 
As a result of this exercise and business case, the WG have recognised the considerable 
opportunities associated with the potential plans outlined for improving the collection of high-
quality materials alongside support for their processing and use. Not just in waste and resource 
efficiency, but also in renewable energy, transport, and regional economic development.  We have 
received notification of support funding approval for £14.3m from the WG and the Minister for 
Climate Change based upon our service change timelines. And the decarbonisation of our fleet 
resource and the benefit on wider WG objectives. 
This capital support combined with increased material values and lower treatment costs inherent 
with Blueprint collections, will result in overall savings in 2024/25 compared to the increased cost 
of the interim position. 
 

Circular Economy 
 
Carmarthenshire has been successful in obtaining funding to develop our circular economy 
ambitions within the County. WE have recently implemented a series of projects delivering the re-
use, repair, and re-manufacture of waste streams. The projects include: 

• Repair workshop and re-use village at Nantycaws 

• Re-use shop in Llanelli town centre 

• Commercial recycling centre at Nantycaws 

• Paint re-use facility 

These projects add vital pieces of the jigsaw to Carmarthenshire’s contribution to Wales becoming 
a leader in recycling. However, it is still required to develop our domestic waste collections to 
supplement these developments so that we can deliver against the objectives contained within the 
WG strategy. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 81



 

 
 
 
 

Next Steps  
 
Following the roll out of the interim service model in January the procurement of vehicles for the 
long-term solution needs to be undertaken in earnest, with routing and service design for the 
recycling collections commenced. This work delivers the necessary improvements in recycling 
quality and will dictate our capacity for the utilisation of ULEV vehicles in the longer term. We need 
to finalise the long-term depot configuration and service design proposals and commence design, 
planning and ultimately build of this centralised approach. 
 

Waste Policy 
 
With the impending waste changes roll out in January 2023, which have the strategic objective of 
improving kerbside domestic waste collections and increasing recycling capture in 
Carmarthenshire a change and formalisation of waste management policies is required.   
The waste policies that underpin our services have previously been fragmented, whereby sections 
of our policy approach have been amended or added to within separate reports and papers passed 
through the democratic process, as and when change is necessary or required with no public 
document to consolidate them.  
To provide clarity to officers, Members, and the public, we have created a singular waste 
management policy document. This has been achieved through collating, amending, and 
updating existing policies to ensure the service is working towards a cohesive strategic approach 
to enable residents to reuse or recycle as much of their domestic waste as they can.  
This document outlines how Carmarthenshire County Council is to deliver the refuse and 
recycling collection services, our network of HWRC’s and Re-use facilities as well as the actions 
required for householders to participate fully in the service to recycle and dispose of their waste. 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  
 

Tudalen 82



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

1. Finance   
To deliver the interim the net service cost increase from the baseline will be £1.63m per year. With the 
proposed timeline this would equate to a figure of £2.4m for an 18-month service programme. This will 
be funded through divisional reserves and budget growth allocation.  
£14.6m capital funding has been obtained from WG and will support the capital costs required to effect 
the longer term change.  

4. ICT  
There is a comprehensive IT development programme for Waste and Environmental Services with 
resource currently identified. IT Development for information systems relating to our kerbside collection 
fleet will be required to deliver our long-term aspirations of service improvement.  
5. Risk Management Issues 
The current Welsh Government statutory target is 64% recycling, increasing to 70% recycling by 2025, 
and possibly 80% by 2030, with the aim for Wales to be a zero waste (100% recycling) nation by 2050. 
If the Authority fails to meet the statutory targets, it could face large financial penalties. This risk of 
recycling performance failure is identified as part of the corporate risk along with mitigating measures.  
 
6. Physical Assets   
Additional physical resources have been necessary to deliver the interim options set out. With the 
purchase and lease of additional vehicles to deliver the service configuration. The service has also 
entered into a lease agreement on a unit at cross hands to effect collections of the additional services.   
 
Detailed modelling is being undertaken to fully understand the requirements going forward. 
 
In addition, the development of infrastructure at Nantycaws and transfer stations will be progressed 
with WG and regional support. 
7. Staffing Implications 
Additional staffing resources have been necessary in the interim options set out. With 47 operatives 
required and currently being employed.  
Robust workforce planning and training actions have been undertaken for in-house staff with 18 new 
drivers trained from within the current service.  

Trade Unions have been actively engaged in the service change and monthly meetings are scheduled 
to continue with colleagues.  

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 

Signed:   Daniel W John                                                                 Head of Waste & Environmental Services                          
 

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE YES YES  YES  YES  YES  YES  

Tudalen 83



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:        Daniel W John                                                       Head of Waste & Environmental Services                                                 

 
 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  YES 
15.12.22 -PSCC RESOLVED that the progress and delivery of the Waste Strategy 2021 be 
received and noted 
2.Local Member(s)   
A full engagement and briefing programme for members has been set out.  

 
3.Community / Town Council  
we will continue to undertake a full engagement process to inform local stakcholders and involve them in our 
decision-making process.  

4.Relevant Partners   
WG are actively engaged in the development of this approach and funding drawdown is being agreed.  

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
Yes - we will continue to undertake a full consultation and engagement programme with staff side representatives 
to deliver the strategy.  

 
 

CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES 

 

 

Tudalen 84



1 
 

Insert project name or 
document title here

Insert sub heading here

15/02/2022

carmarthenshire.gov.walescarmarthenshire.gov.wales

Carmarthenshire County Council
Waste and Environmental Services

Waste and Recycling Policy

23rd January 2023

Tudalen 85



2 
 

Contents 
Introduction ..............................................................................................................................4 

Kerbside Collections ..................................................................................................................5 

Collection Frequency .............................................................................................................5 

Presentation of refuse and recycling receptacles .................................................................5 

Dry Recycling (blue bags) ......................................................................................................6 

Food Waste ...........................................................................................................................7 

Glass bottles and jars ............................................................................................................8 

Garden Waste .......................................................................................................................9 

Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) Nappy Waste ................................................................9 

Black bag residual waste .....................................................................................................10 

Black Bag Limit Exemptions .................................................................................................11 

Large families ..................................................................................................................11 

Ashes ...............................................................................................................................11 

Pet waste .........................................................................................................................12 

Receptacles, Dustbins and Wheeled Bins ...............................................................................12 

All refuse and recycling receptacles supplied to householders shall always remain the 
property of the Council Assisted lift collections ......................................................................13 

Assisted Collections .................................................................................................................13 

Requires registration and limited to infirm residents .....................................................13 

Bulky Waste Collections ..........................................................................................................14 

Chargeable service ..........................................................................................................14 

Cancellations and Refunds ..............................................................................................15 

Compost Bins ..........................................................................................................................15 

Christmas and New Year Collections .......................................................................................16 

Distribution Outlets for bags and caddies ...............................................................................16 

Education and Enforcement Process ......................................................................................16 

Collection Points .....................................................................................................................17 

Housing developments and unadopted roads ....................................................................17 

Rear Lanes and Long Reach Properties ...............................................................................17 

Private roads ...................................................................................................................17 

Highway maintained roads .................................................................................................18 

Parked cars ..........................................................................................................................18 

Missed Collections ..................................................................................................................18 

Email and text messaging service ...........................................................................................19 

Tudalen 86



3 
 

Holiday homes, holiday rentals, caravan parks/sites and bed and breakfast establishments 19 

Cemeteries and Places of worship ..........................................................................................19 

Domestic waste ...............................................................................................................20 

Commercial waste charges .............................................................................................20 

Collection of waste from charities ..........................................................................................20 

Household Waste Recycling Centres .......................................................................................20 

Proof of Residency ..........................................................................................................20 

Permits and vehicle guidance .........................................................................................21 

Black bag sorting .............................................................................................................21 

Donation Stations ............................................................................................................22 

Education and enforcement: ..........................................................................................22 

Disposal of blue bags (dry recycling) ...............................................................................23 

Plasterboard (gypsum) waste and asbestos ....................................................................23 

Refrigerators and freezers – COLD units .........................................................................23 

Charities ..........................................................................................................................23 

Eto – repair and reuse .........................................................................................................24 

Appendix .................................................................................................................................25 

Appendices 1 - Garden Waste Terms and Conditions .........................................................25 

Appendices 2 – AHP and children’s nappy waste terms and conditions ............................28 

Appendices 3 – Individual property education and enforcement process map .................29 

Appendices 4 – Communal collection point education and enforcement process .............29 

Appendices 5 – Parked Cars Process ...................................................................................31 

 
  

Tudalen 87



4 
 

Introduction 
 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Refuse and Recycling Collection Policy aims to ensure 
that refuse and recycling services operate effectively and efficiently in order to maximise 
recycling and reduce the amount of waste sent for treatment and disposal.  
The Council currently provides waste services to approximately 91,000 households through 
the delivery of a:  

• weekly co-mingled kerbside recycling service  

•  weekly food waste recycling collection 

• three weekly glass recycling collection  

• three weekly residual general waste collection  

• Fortnightly AHP and Nappy Waste collection(subscription service)  

• Kerbside bulky and garden waste collections are offered as chargeable services, 

•  A network of 4 Household Waste Recyling Centre’s (Whitland, Nantycaws, Trostre, 
Wernddu) 

• Recycling Bring-sites available for glass recycling and provision for textiles and small 
electrical items at busier sites.  

• Re-use and repair shops located at Nantycaws and Llanelli Town Centre and  

• A commercial waste recycling facility located at Nantycaws.  

 
Under the terms of the Environmental Protection Act, 1990, Carmarthenshire County 
Council (the ‘Council’) is classed as a Waste Collection and Disposal Authority, and as such, 
under section 45 (1), has a statutory duty to collect household waste from all domestic 
properties in the County. Under Section 46(4) of the Act, the Council has specific powers to 
stipulate:  

• The size and type of the collection receptacle(s);  

• Where the receptacle(s) must be placed for the purpose of collecting and emptying;  

• The materials or items which may or may not be placed within the receptacle(s).  

 
This document outlines how Carmarthenshire County Council is to deliver the refuse and 
recycling collection services, our network of HWRC’s and Re-use facilities as well as the 
actions required for householders to participate fully in the service to recycle and dispose of 
their waste. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 88



5 
 

Kerbside Collections  
 
Carmarthenshire County Council operate a suite of Kerbside collections. The services are 
conducted from Monday to Friday inclusive, except on Bank Holidays when the collection 
days are agreed with key stakeholders and notified to residents in advance.  Collections are 
conducted between the hours of 6am – 2pm (except for AHP and nappy waste collections 
which are 7am- 3pm).   
 
Collection Frequency  
 
The Council will collect household waste and recycling on the following basis  

• Weekly Dry Recycling and food waste  
• Three Weekly Black bag – limited to three 60L sacks  
• Three Weekly Glass recycling (Where available)  
• Fortnightly AHP and Nappy Waste (Subscription service)  
• Fortnightly Garden Waste (Chargeable subscription service) 

 
Presentation of refuse and recycling receptacles  
Refuse and recycling must be presented at the kerbside by 6.00am on the day of collection 
and not before 6pm the day before collection. Recycling receptacles must be back within 
the property boundary the same day of collection.  
 
If receptacles are not presented by 6.00am on the day of collection, bins reported as missed 
will not be considered a ‘missed’ collection for reporting reasons. Responsibility for disposal 
of the waste will then become that of the householder, we will not return to collect the 
waste. Refuse and recycling receptacles not presented for collection at the time the 
collection operatives arrive at the property will be recorded.  
 
Should a missed collection be reported on the designated day of collection, and subject to 
the record sheet failing to show the receptacle as not being presented for collection, the 
Council will be required to go back and collect the waste within 3 working days.  
 
Waste must be presented in the correct receptacles, specified by the council. Waste 
presented in the incorrect receptacle will be left uncollected and recorded against the 
property.  A sticker will be placed on the receptacle and a record of the infringement taken.  
This will commence a comprehensive education and enforcement process to assist residents 
to contribute fully to the recycling scheme. 
 
Where householders do not present their refuse or recyclables for collection in accordance 
with Council requirements, the householder will have the following options:  

• take the waste to the Household Waste Recycling Centre;  
• store the waste until the next collection day 

 
The crew will return emptied waste receptacles as close to the collection point as possible, 
avoiding blocking any accesses to property. They will endeavour to close lids on bins and 
consider any conditions on the day of collection that may affect where they position the 

Tudalen 89



6 
 

empty bin upon return, to limit damage, health and safety issues for pedestrian or other 
road users or reduce as best they can the probability of the potential for lost or damaged 
bins due to adverse weather conditions. Bins which are not taken back into the boundary of 
the property following a collection, may be identified as ‘abandoned’ and removed by the 
Council  
 
Where appropriate, spillages or loose recycling will be cleaned up by the collection crew 
using the cleaning tools stored on the collection vehicle. If additional cleansing is required, 
the collection crew will notify their supervisor to request further cleansing via the cleansing 
service.  
 
Our Crews are there to provide you support and advice on recycling and waste collection 
issues. Crews will not tolerate and are instructed to report any verbal abuse or bad 
behaviour from the public towards them, directly to their supervisor at the earliest 
opportunity, such behaviour will not be condoned and will be dealt with via the councils’ 
policies and procedures.  
 
 
Dry Recycling (blue bags) 
 
All households are provided with a weekly comingled collection of dry mixed recyclate. 
Residents receive a supply of single use blue bags annually.  These bags are free of charge 
and each household received three rolls of fifty-two bags per roll, each year.   

Households can present unlimited blue bags each week to recycle as much of their 
household waste as possible on their designated collection day. The blue bags provided are 
to be used for kerbside recycling collection use only. The bags should not be used for 
anything else other than the intended purpose stipulated by the council.  

If the householder requires an additional supply due to the number of people living within 
the property resulting in additional dry mixed recycling capacity needs, further rolls are 
available at prescribed outlets, listed on the council website.   

One additional roll can be obtained per visit.  If for health or infirmity reasons a resident or 
their relative, friend or neighbour on their behalf, cannot access any of the outlets, residents 
can contact the Hwb to request a delivery to their home.   

Annual deliveries are conducted to every household in the county regardless of number of 
inhabitants within the household.  If householders do not use the blue bag supply provided, 
they can return surplus stock to any of the councils principal Hwbs in; Carmarthen, Llanelli 
or Ammanford. 

Recycled items must be clean and dry before placing into the bags.  The following can be 
recycled weekly in the blue bags; 

• Paper 
• Cardboard  
• Metal cans and tins; aerosols and foil 
• Plastics bottles, pots, tubs and trays 
• Food and drink cartons such as Tetra Pak 

Tudalen 90



7 
 

 

Large carboard boxes can be flat packed and placed underneath or alongside (in a secure 
manner) the blue bags. 

Any contamination or presentation of blue bags on the incorrect collection day will be 
uncollected, a sticker will be placed on the bag and a record of the infringement taken.  This 
will commence a comprehensive education and enforcement process to assist residents to 
contribute fully to the recycling scheme. 

 
Food Waste  
 

All households in the county are provided with a weekly collection of food waste. Residents 
are provided with a 23-litre plastic food waste bin and 5 litre plastic kitchen caddy.  
Residents are also provided with 7 litre liners for their kitchen caddies.  These liners when 
full should be tied and transferred into the 23-litre food waste bin to be presented at 
kerbside/ collection area on the designated collection day. 

Due to the methods and vehicles used for food waste collection in some areas and for 
households that are serviced by cage vehicles, additional 30 litre liners are provided for the 
23 litre food waste bins. All 30 litre liners must be tied firmly within the food waste bin by 
the resident ahead of collection to ensure all food waste is contained securely whilst 
transferring the food from bin to vehicle and during transit. 

The following can be recycled using the weekly food collection service: 

• Food scraps 
• Fruit and vegetable peelings 
• Meat and fish including bones  
• Seafood shells  
• Egg shells  
• Tea bags and coffee grounds 
• Waste pet food      

It is the resident’s responsibility to; 

• Put food waste in the liners provided and present for collection within the 23-litre 
food waste bin 

• Not overfill the bin and make sure the lid is shut and secured by folding the handle 
down fully to lock the lid in place to prevent spillages 

• Place the bin at the collection point before 6am on collection day. 
• Collect the bin from the collection point once emptied 
• Wash out the bin after collection to remove any food residue and to keep the food 

bin clean                       

Any contamination or presentation of the food waste bin on the incorrect collection day will 
be uncollected, a sticker will be placed on the bag and a record of the infringement taken.  
This will commence a comprehensive education and enforcement process to assist residents 
to contribute fully to the recycling scheme. 

Tudalen 91



8 
 

 

Residents may place out more than one food waste caddy per collection. 

The food waste bin, kitchen caddy and liners provided are to be used for kerbside food 
waste collection use only.  They should not be used for anything else other than the 
intended purpose stipulated by the council.   

If the householder requires an additional supply of liners due to the number living within 
the property resulting in additional food waste capacity needs, further rolls are available 
from the councils principal Hwbs in; Carmarthen, Llanelli or Ammanford.  One additional roll 
can be obtained per visit.   

Replacement food waste bins and caddies for damaged or stolen bins are also available via 
the Hwb or through completing an online ‘request a recycling item’ form.   

If for health or infirmity reasons a resident or their relative, friend or neighbour on their 
behalf, cannot access any of the prescribed outlets, residents can contact the Hwb to 
request a delivery to their home.   

 
Glass bottles and jars 
 
The collection will take place every three weeks using a 45-litre kerbside box to all eligible 
households.  Boxes will be issued initially through the roll out delivery process.  

If any box is lost or damaged the service will allow no more than one additional box to be 
ordered within a six-month time period.  If a further box is requested within this timeframe, 
contact will be made with the resident to determine the issue. 

Resident can only place out one box for collection.  The box should not be used for anything 
else other than the intended purpose stipulated by the council.  Collections will only be 
made from Council issued boxes compliant with our health and safety standards. 

The following can be placed in the box for three weekly kerbside collections. 

• All glass bottles and jars 
Including; 

✓ glass bottles, such as those used for beer, wine and soft drinks 
✓ glass jars, such as those used for baby food and sauces 
✓ non-food and drink glass bottles and jars, such as those used for perfume, aftershave 

and face creams 

It is the resident’s responsibility to; 

• Make sure glass bottles and jars are empty and rinsed 
• Put glass bottles and jars into the box loosely, not in plastic bags. 
• Not overfill the box or put out any additional glass. 
• Place the box at the collection point before 6am collection day. 
• Collect the box from the collection point once emptied 
• Keep the box clean 

Tudalen 92



9 
 

A replacement box for kerbside bottles and jar recycling because of damaged or lost bins are 
available via completing an online ‘request a recycling item’ form or residents can contact 
the Hwb to request a delivery to their home.   

Any contamination or presentation of the box for glass bottles and jars on the incorrect 
collection day will be uncollected, a sticker will be placed on the box and a record of the 
infringement taken.  This will commence a comprehensive education and enforcement 
process to assist residents to contribute fully to the recycling scheme. 

 

Garden Waste  
 
*Requires registration and is a seasonal subscription (paid for) service 
 
Fortnightly garden waste collections are available via subscription. The service in operation 
during the months of March – November for household garden waste only. 

Residents registering for the service will be provided with council issued receptacles for 
garden waste collection and details of their collection day. Residents can register for a 
collection online or by contacting the Hwb.  This is a chargeable service with charges paid 
annually either via direct debit or a one-off reduced price (10% discount) on full year cost 
and which covers a 240-litre green waste wheeled bin and its collection. 

A comprehensive terms and conditions document attached (appendices 1) provides a 
complete guide to the garden waste service provision.  

 
Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) Nappy Waste  
 

A Fortnightly AHP/ Nappy Waste collection is available via subscription. The service consists 
of collections for;  Hygiene waste comprising of categories 1-4 below and children’s 
disposable nappy waste category 4.  

Offensive Waste (as defined in the Controlled Waste Regulations 2012) means waste that: 

a) Is not clinical waste; 
b) Contains body fluids, secretions or excretions and; 
c) Whose collection and disposal are not subject to special requirements to prevent 

infection. 

Waste eligible for the service can consist of: 

1) Disposable bed pans & liners, incontinence pads, bed and chair pads 

2) Colostomy/stoma bags, catheter bags and urine bottles 

3) Plastic gloves & disposable aprons 

4) Nappies including any bags & wipes 

 

Residents registering for the service will be provided a supply of rolls containing purple bags.  
The bags must be placed out for collection on the designated collection day.  

Tudalen 93



10 
 

Hygiene waste customers may also request either 240 or 360 litre purple lidded wheel bins 
to store their waste. Residents can register for a collection online or by contacting the Hwb 
on 01267 234567. Children’s Nappy customers will not be eligible for any wheeled bins. 

AHP/Nappies cannot be placed in any bag other than the bags which have been supplied by 
the council or the waste will not be collected.  Persistent misuse of purple bags for any 
waste other than AHP will have stickers placed on the bag advising the resident that there is 
an issue.  Any household found to be using the AHP bags for general waste will be visited by 
a Community Recycling Advisor who will provide information on the correct use of the bags.  
They will issue advice and guidance for using the service and explain any breaches.  Any 
further breaches will follow the waste education and enforcement process.  

A review will be undertaken every two years to establish that everyone registered for the 
service is using the service and circumstances have not changed.  A comprehensive terms 
and conditions document attached (appendices 2) provides a complete guide to the AHP 
service provision.  

 
Black bag residual waste  
 

General household rubbish – that is, rubbish that cannot be recycled or composted is 
collected in black bags. These are not provided by the Council, so residents will need to 
purchase thier own.  

The EPA (46(1)) permits Councils to require householders to place waste for collection in 
receptacles of a kind and number specified. On this basis a restriction on the amount of 
residual (refuse/black bag waste) is enforced. 

The following RESTRICTION is applicable within CCC: 

a. Households are permitted to put out for collection up to three black bags of 
residual waste (refuse/black bag waste) every three weeks, which equates up to 
180 litres in capacity; 

b. Householders are to provide black bags for residual waste collections, the Council 
does not supply black bags to householders; 

c. Each bag must be no larger than 60 litres in volume and bags above 60 litres or 
oversized bags (such as wheelie bin liners) will not be collected. Equally very heavy 
bags will not be collected as the bags need to be lifted into a waste vehicle and 
manual handling guidelines will be adhered to; 

d. All residual waste must be placed in black bags only, residual waste presented in 
any other coloured bag will not be collected. 

e. Side waste of bulky domestic items intended for residual waste collection 
presented alongside black bags will not be collected. 

The waste will remain uncollected If  

• there are any visible items suitable for recycling within the residual waste or 
• the residual black bag waste has been presented on the incorrect collection day or 
• more than the prescribed quantity and size is presented. 

Tudalen 94



11 
 

A sticker will be placed on the bag(s) and a record of the infringement taken. This will then 
commence a comprehensive education and enforcement process to assist residents to 
contribute fully to the recycling scheme. 

Black Bag Limit Exemptions 
 
Large families  
 
Where a household has 6 or more permanent occupants, they may make a request for an 
exemption to this limit, so long as they are complying with the authorities full recycling 
schemes. A home visit may be required for the Council to qualify the application.  

If successful households will be granted an allowance of one extra residual black bag per 
three weeks.  

Approved households are provided with council issued distinct stickers which can be placed 
on the additional bag to verify to the collection crew that they have officially requested and 
been approved for the exemption.   

The stickers have a unique identification and can only be issued via this process and is the 
only sticker officially recognised by the collection crews for collection.  

One whole sticker is to be used for the additional bag allowance, no part sticker or any other 
sticker will be recognised as having followed the official process. Only one sticker per three-
week cycle will be allowed.  

If additional waste is presented a notice will be placed on the bag by the collection crew and 
a record of the infringement taken if the additional bag/s are not seen to be compliant with 
the scheme.   

This will commence a comprehensive education and enforcement process to assist residents 
to contribute fully to the recycling scheme.  Once households have used their supply and if 
they require more, they must reapply whereby a full review is undertaken with the applicant 
to ensure that where possible, all other waste is recycled. 

 
Ashes 
 
Residents who produce ash from coal solid fuel fires, are allowed an unlimited allocation of 
residual waste bags at kerbside for ash waste and they are conforming with the full kerbside 
recycling scheme.   

Residents will receive an allocation of council issued, distinct stickers, once they have used 
their supply and if they require more, they must reapply whereby a full review is undertaken 
with the applicant to ensure that where possible, all other waste is recycled. Exemption 
Stickers must be used on ash waste bags only and normal residual waste will be limited to 
three black bags per fortnight.   

Due to the weight of clinker and ash, the bags should not be filled and residents are 
requested to fill the bags a third full due to the weight.   

The householder will be expected to comply with the authorities full recycling schemes 
before consideration for and exemption is undertaken.  

Tudalen 95



12 
 

Eligible households are provided with pink stickers which can be placed on the additional 
ash bags to verify to the collection crew that they have officially requested and been 
approved for the exemption.  The stickers have a unique identification and can only be 
issued via this process and is the only sticker officially recognised by the collection crews.   

One whole sticker is to be used for the additional ash bag allowance, no part sticker or any 
other sticker will be recognised as having followed the official process.  Anything other than 
the official whole sticker presented on the additional bags will result in the bags being left 
uncollected.  A notice will be placed on the bags by the collection crew and a record of the 
infringement taken.  This will commence a comprehensive education and enforcement 
process to assist residents to contribute fully to the recycling scheme.  

Residents can apply for an exemption by completing the online form on our website or by 
phoning 01267 234567. 

 
Pet waste  
 
Pet waste must be double bagged and mixed with other domestic waste within the residual 
black bag waste only.  Any excess disposable pet bedding or cat litter can be taken to a 
recycling centre. There are no extra allowances for this type of waste in black bags.  

Such waste should be double bagged and separated from other waste if taking to the 
recycling centre, as bags are checked, and residents would be asked to separate any 
recyclable items.   

Any waste pet food can go in the food bin. 

Receptacles, Dustbins and Wheeled Bins  
 
Householders may use standard ‘dustbin(s)’ to store their bags on the kerbside.  However, 
the dustbin(s) must be of a standard size (80 to 90 litres) and the householder must still house 
their waste in the prescribed bags for the collection i.e., black, blue or purple bags pending 
on the collection the householder wished to use the dustbin for. 

The authority will not be liable to replace any broken dustbins as they are used purely on the 
resident’s preference to contain bagged waste.  

Wheeled bins purchased privately by the resident are permitted for black bag residual or 
blue bag dry recycling for storage purposes only; on collection day householders must put 
their bags on the kerbside for collection, and not present within the wheeled bin for 
collection.  No waste will be collected from the wheeled bin on health and safety grounds 
and a sticker will be placed on the bin and a record of the infringement made.  This will 
commence a comprehensive education and enforcement process to assist residents with 
the waste policies. 

The council provides services that use wheeled bins such as garden waste and AHP.  The 
bins are purchased via a comprehensive procurement process and the bins adhere to British 
Standards and the working practices assigned to such services undergo a robust health and 
safety risk assessment and safe systems of work to allow collection crews to undertake 
collections safely from wheeled bins issued only by the council.  The vehicles also have the 

Tudalen 96



13 
 

standard wheeled bin lifting mechanism to support the lift of council issued bins safely and 
within the health and safety guidelines. 

The council do not have a way of determining the standards of the privately purchased bins 
and therefore will not collect from privately owned bins. 

All refuse and recycling receptacles supplied to householders shall always remain the 
property of the Council Assisted lift collections   

Any damage to wheeled bins caused by the collection crews during the collection process 
will be replaced free of charge. Replacement wheeled bins or recycling boxes shall be 
delivered to householders as soon as practicable after the request has been made 

 
 

Assisted Collections  
Requires registration and limited to infirm residents  

Residents who are temporarily or permanently unable transport their waste to access 
kerbside services due to their limited ability, and there is no one else to help, can apply for 
an assisted collection.  The service is not available if there are able bodied residents living at 
the same address.  

Residents can register for an assisted collection online or via the Hwb on 01267 234567 

Confirmation of the following will be required when applying for an assisted collection: 

• Full contact details of person applying for the service 
• Reason for application 
• Details of anyone else living in the same household 
• Reasons why any other occupants are unable to move the waste and/or recycling 
• Provision of copy documents to confirm proof of eligibility (e.g. Blue badge, single 

person Council Tax allowance)  
• Confirmation of which services the applicant requires assistance for i.e. temporary or 

permanent  
• Agree to the Council making further checks on information provided by applicant 

when required 

Applicants will need to complete a form to ascertain eligibility for the scheme. Once the 
form is fully completed and documents are provided as proof of eligibility, consideration by 
an officer from the Waste Services Team will determine the eligibility and potentially 
arrange a further visit to the property to undertake a health and safety risk assessment 
inspection to determine the new designated collection point.  

Residents who require a temporary assisted collection, for example during the recuperation 
period following an operation, will agree the length of time in which they require assistance 
and the assistance will automatically be terminated after that date. If residents require 
assistance for a longer time than originally agreed, they will be required to reapply. 

Once the assisted collection has been established the collection point will be confirmed with 
the appropriate crews.  

Tudalen 97



14 
 

Residents should allow ten working days to be contacted for the assisted collection to be 
confirmed. 

Residents should inform the council if they or a family member no longer require the service 
or need to amend their contact details. 

A review of the assisted lift database will be conducted every two years to ensure the most 
up to date records are kept. 

The decision of the supervising/authorised officer will be final 

Bulky Waste Collections  
 
Chargeable service 
 
We provide a bulky waste collection and will collect up to three items for £25 from your 
usual refuse and recycling collection point. 

Residents can register for a collection online on My Account or by calling 01267 234567. 
Depending on their preference residents can select a slot within a six-week timeframe or 
can be allocated the next available slot for collection in their area and advised of the 
collection date.   

Payment can be made by debit or credit card by calling the Hwb or online via the My 
Account booking system. Once payment has been authorised the collection will be booked 
in.  

A bulky collection booking is for three items, if at the time of booking the resident does not 
have three items then an item can be added later.  An item can also be changed up to two 
full working days before the collection is due to take place. 

Collection points for bulky waste items will usually be at the normal refuse ‘and recycling 
collection point for the property to accommodate the collection vehicle unless there is an 
operational requirement to provide a different collection location due to an assisted lift* or 
type of waste being deposited**.   

All items for bulky waste collection must be fully accessible to our collection crews.  

Residents agree that the items they dispose of via the bulky waste service can be assessed 
for the purpose of repair and reuse via the Eto project. 

Residents must remove the seals from any refrigerators or freezers to avoid children, pets 
or wildlife becoming trapped within.  

No additional items will be collected other than those listed and paid for in the bulky waste 
collection application 

Residents can opt to receive a reminder either via text or email 

There are no concessions for this service. 

Collection crews do not enter property. 

 

Tudalen 98



15 
 

*If the resident receives an assisted lift for their usual kerbside collection and requires 
assistance with a bulky collection an additional risk assessment must be carried out. The 
booking is put on hold whilst an assessment is undertaken.  The officer from the waste 
services team will confirm with the resident following a visit to the property if the location 
complies with health and safety standards for operatives to lift and manoeuvre the waste 
based on the bulky items in question. 

**If a change of location to the usual kerbside collection is requested due to constraints on 
space at the normal collection point or limited access to the pavement/ public highway due 
to the nature of the bulky waste requiring presentation, an application form can be 
completed to determine the feasibility of the request.  An officer from the waste services 
team will need to assess and conduct a health and safety risk assessment, they will then 
confirm what location would be best to collect the waste from or decline the application.   

This will be done ahead of booking the bulky collection. 

 
Cancellations and Refunds 
 
If cancellations are made at least three full working days before the day of the scheduled 
collection date, residents will be granted a full refund. Cancellations made after this period 
will be non-refundable. 

If for any reason the collection operatives are unable to collect the items, for example due 
to adverse weather conditions, the operatives will attempt to collect the items as soon as 
operationally possible.  

No refund will be given if, for any reason, the collection operatives attend the property to 
find: 

• The items are not presented at the time of collection 
• The items are not presented at the agreed collection point;  
• The incorrect items have been placed for collection or the number of items 

has been exceeded;  
• The items are presented in such a way that the operatives are unable to 

safely collect the items;   
• The property is secured and the collection operatives cannot gain access to 

the external area where agreement has been made to collect from; or 
• Another company / source has collected the items. 

 

Compost Bins 
 
‘Soil Saver’ compost bins (330 litre) are available to purchase for £12 including delivery, via 
the councils website or by contacting the Hwb on 01267 234567 

• The bin dimensions are height 100cm and diameter 80cm. An information booklet is 
also included. The bins are available to Carmarthenshire residents only. 

• Bins will be delivered within 10 working days 
• An unlimited number can be ordered. 

Tudalen 99



16 
 

Christmas and New Year Collections  
 
Waste increases during the Christmas and New Year period and should be managed through 
using the full kerbside recycling scheme available to all domestic residents.  

All accepted recycling materials should be placed in the blue recycling bags and food waste 
caddy for weekly recycling and glass bottles and jars in the prescribed box every three weeks 
or any surplus can be taken to the nearest bring site wherever possible.   

Blue bag dry mixed recycling and food waste is unlimited and if residents are contributing to 
the full kerbside scheme reasonable excess in residual waste may be collected during this 
seasonal influx in domestic waste arisings.   

 

Distribution Outlets for bags and caddies  
 

To encourage residents of Carmarthenshire to recycle as much as possible, the council has 
established numerous collection points throughout the county for the free collection of blue 
bags.  In the official council offices (Hwbs) in the three principal towns, residents can collect 
blue bags, food waste caddies, and liners free of charge. The recycling items obtained from 
the Hwbs should be used for domestic collections only. 

The additional collections points are in other council buildings or at private outlets and they 
supply blue bags only. A list of outlets is available on our website. 

The Hwbs in the principal towns can also accept surplus blue bags which residents can 
return and which will be redistributed.  Broken or damaged bags should not be returned. 

Education and Enforcement Process 
The Council’s policy is to promote the responsible management of waste from householders, 
businesses and visitors. Building awareness and having an educational approach is important 
to help residents understand their role and assist with improving recycling and operating 
efficient services. Education and enforcement activities will follow these principles and be 
used as a staged approach.  

The council will educate householders about the requirements of restricted residual waste in 
the first instance. Enforcement will be used only for those householders and persons that 
have received prior education and guidance, which has then not been adhered to.   

There are circumstances to which the education and enforcement processes shall follow and 
will be applied to;  

• exceeding the residual black bag restriction  
• contamination of recycling blue bags, food waste, glass bottles and jars, AHP and 

nappy waste and/ or garden waste 
• and for placing any waste out on the incorrect day.   

The process maps in appendices 3 and 4 demonstrate the stages for each process to allow 
individuals to support our strategic and operational objectives.   

Tudalen 100



17 
 

If residents still fail to comply with the waste receptacles/recycling notice they will receive a 
£100 fixed penalty notice. If residents still do not comply after FPN the maximum penalty on 
conviction can be up to £1000.  

Collection Points  

As a Council we undertake the majority of our collections from the edge of the adopted 
highway, in certain circumstances we have made arrangements whereby collections can 
take place from the edge or the rear of a property and on occasion on an unadopted road. 
In these cases, the road owner is expected to sign an indemnity regarding road conditions 
and the location is subject to a condition survey and risk assessment. This approach is in 
place to protect our workforce from injury and to limit our vehicles suffering damage from 
some of the unadopted and private roads that are in a very poor condition. 

Housing developments and unadopted roads  
 
Whilst residents move into their new home on any new development, much of the site can 
remain unfinished awaiting development or building works in a phased manner.  This 
involves the use of heavy machinery, storage of building materials, vehicles on roadways, 
erection of scaffolding, hazardous hard hat areas and many trip hazards.  There may also be 
incomplete roadways and pavements, raised manhole covers, raised gullies/hydrants, and 
raised edges on kerbs. To always ensure our staffs safety, a development will only be 
entered by our vehicles and crews when all building works are fully completed or an 
agreement is reached with the developer for a phased entry, whereby a larger development 
may take several years to complete. 

During the development, arrangements for waste collections will be agreed with the 
developer.  Those with infirmities/disabilities may apply for Assisted Lifts, however it would 
be the responsibility of the developer to ensure this material is moved to the collection 
point on behalf of the resident. 

It is only upon receipt of a section 38 agreement (required from the Highways Section) or 
indemnifying letter from the developer, that we would undertake a risk assessment to enter 
the development for waste collection either in a staged or completed build phase. 

Rear Lanes and Long Reach Properties 
Private roads 

Some properties in Carmarthenshire are situated along narrow, private lanes or country 
tracks which are not maintained by the Highways department.  These have the potential to 
damage council refuse vehicles and provide hazards for our crews such as potholes or 
overgrown vegetation and overhanging branches.  Parked cars may block full access and 
there may be blind bends and no turning circle for our vehicles. The council will request that 
residents present their waste at the closest location to the primary highway network where 
collection vehicles can travel safely.  

In certain circumstances, a risk assessment will determine the designated collection point 
for such properties to use at the nearest primary highway network. These collection points 
may serve one or several properties along a lane or branch of lanes.  The collection points 
will be serviced at the same frequency as the kerbside service.  

Tudalen 101



18 
 

If a resident that lives on a private lane cannot present their waste at the allocated 
collection point and requires assistance, they can apply for an assisted lift collection.  Those 
that may be awarded an assisted lift collection will receive a visit so that a full risk 
assessment can be conducted to determine the health and safety requirements.  The service 
will need to at times determine on a case-by-case basis the most efficient means of 
collecting the waste.  In any circumstance the landowner would need to meet set guidelines 
issued by waste services regarding maintained road surfaces, adequate turning area for a 
vehicle specified by the council, lighting and cut back of overgrowth of vegetation or/and 
overhanging branches routinely as a minimum. 

 
Highway maintained roads 
 
The collection crews will record on their daily debrief forms and report back to the 
supervisor of any highway defects that require attention and that may hinder or prohibit 
them for undertaking their collection rounds.  Any road, bridges or hedge/tree overgrowth 
that requires attention will be reported to the highways department for remedial works to 
be conducted at the earliest opportunity. 
 
Parked cars 
 
Collections may sometimes be hindered or cannot take place at all by the designated 
collection vehicle due to access restricted by parking of motorists. The collection crew will 
endeavour to call back later in the collection day if they encounter a vehicle which prohibits 
them from entering a road/street to collect from households. If this is still not possible a 
parked car process has been developed to highlight the problems experienced by the 
service to those that may have parked in an inconsiderate manner and blocked access to 
larger vehicles. Appendices 5 demonstrates the process.  
 

Missed Collections 
 
There is a facility on our website to check for any waste collection disruptions which may 
lead to missed collections this facility should be utilised in the first instance. 

Refuse and recycling must be presented at the kerbside by 6.00am on the day of collection 
and not before 6pm the day before collection. Recycling receptacles must back within the 
property boundary the same day of collection.  

If receptacles are not presented by 6.00am on the day of collection, bins reported as missed 
will not be considered a ‘missed’ collection for reporting reasons. Responsibility for disposal 
of the waste will then become that of the householder, we will not return to collect the 
waste. Refuse and recycling receptacles not presented for collection at the time the 
collection operatives arrive at the property will be recorded.  

Should a missed collection be reported on the designated day of collection, and subject to 
the record sheet failing to show the receptacle as not being presented for collection, the 
Council will be required to go back and collect the waste within 3 working days.  

Tudalen 102



19 
 

Residents can report a missed collection on the council website or by calling 01267 234567. 
Missed collections should not be reported until after 2pm (3pm for Hygiene and Nappy 
waste) on the day of collection, due to any time delays experienced by the collection crew.  

 

Email and text messaging service 
 
The waste service provides an email or text messaging service to residents who wish to 
receive reminder notification of their kerbside collection service.  Registration for this 
service can be made via My Account.  The residents address details and method of contact 
will be obtained at registration.   

Residents will receive a message based on their preferred communication method 
reminding them the evening before their collections to place their waste out for collection.  
The service is available for blur bag dry recycling, food waste, glass bottle and jars, black 
bags, AHP and garden waste collection services.  

Sign up to the service provides agreement that residents are willing to receive messages 
regarding their waste collection service, this may in some instances mean additional alert 
messages due to disruptions in collections such as vehicle breakdowns or adverse weather 
conditions. 

It is the resident’s responsibility to amend their contact details or cancel the service. 
Residents must amend their details via My Account if their contact detail have changed or 
they have moved address as the messages sent will be pertaining to the detail available via 
the My Account contact and address details. 

Holiday homes, holiday rentals, caravan parks/sites and 
bed and breakfast establishments 
 
A free recycling and food waste collection and a chargeable residual waste collection will be 
provided to holiday premises within the county whose owners pay Business Rates to 
Carmarthenshire County Council. For the purposes of clarity, holiday premises are those that 
are rented for monies for the purposes of providing holiday accommodation. This policy does 
not include transitory traveller camps or any sites which do not have valid planning or 
planning exemption for such use. 
 
Members of the public who reside in holiday homes, permanent traveller sites or caravan 
parks for longer than 3 months and pay council tax will be treated as householders and receive 
the full recycling and residual waste service free of charge. Owners of second homes who use 
them solely for their own family or friend use and do not receive any kind of income from 
renting the premises will also be entitled to the full recycling and residual waste service free 
of charge. 
 
The authority may reserve the right to request payment from holiday premise owners or 
management companies for the provision of wheeled bin containers on site supplied and 
serviced by the local authority to contain the waste specified for recycled waste. 

Tudalen 103



20 
 

Cemeteries and Places of worship 
 
Domestic waste  
 
Places of worship who do not conduct additional activities on site that generate monies for 
profit or for the purposes of giving monies to a nominated charity (that is not part of the 
religious establishment), will also be treated as domestic waste. This includes any waste 
generated through religious festivals irrespective of denomination.  At the discretion of the 
council waste from cemeteries which are stand alone or within the grounds of a place of 
worship will be treated as domestic waste except for large burial grounds. 
 
Commercial waste charges 
 
Places of worship who run businesses on their sites, such as a paid for creche, restaurant, 
hire out meeting rooms, hall spaces for commercial activity, etc will be treated as 
commercial waste. Large cemeteries will be treated as commercial and would need to have 
a commercial collection agreement. 

Collection of waste from charities 
 
The Controlled Waste Regulations 2012 changed the charging mechanism to impose a 
charge for both collection and disposal of waste from charitable organisations. The only 
exception is for registered charities which accept donations of items from the public e.g. 
clothes, crockery, furniture etc. This type of waste remained under the classification of 
household waste and therefore the disposal cost must be excluded from the commercial 
charge for these clients only. 

The remaining registered charity clients are charged the full commercial rate for collection 
and disposal of waste as they do not accept donations of household items from the public. 

Household Waste Recycling Centres 
 
Carmarthenshire has four HWRCs, Trostre in Llanelli, Nantycaws near Carmarthen, Wernddu 
near Ammanford and Whitland. The sites are for the use of Carmarthenshire residents and 
for the disposal of domestic waste only. Trostre, Wernddu and Nantycaws also have 
adjacent transfer stations which may take commercial waste.    
 
All four sites are open between the hours of 08:30 – 18:00 during the Summer (Apr – Sept) 
and between 08:30 – 16:00 during the winter (Oct – Mar).  
Whitland is open Wed – Sun but does also open on Bank Holiday Mondays (unless these fall 
on Christmas/Boxing or New Year’s Day) 
The other three sites are open 7 days a week except for Christmas/Boxing and New Year’s 
Day. 
 
Proof of Residency  

 

Tudalen 104



21 
 

• Any person visiting the HWRCs in Carmarthenshire will be required to produce proof 
of residency when requested by site staff  

• Proof of residency will be taken to include items such as driving licence, council tax bill 
or recent utility bill (within 3 months) with a CCC address. There are some mitigating 
circumstances such as those that pay Carmarthenshire council tax but have an out of 
county postal address these can be accommodated through discussion with officers. 

• Those who are not able to produce proof of residency when requested, will be turned 
away from the site. 

• Any individual suspected to be accessing the HWRC with waste from a commercial 
origin will be refused entry. 

  
Permits and vehicle guidance   
Our recycling centres are for the use of Carmarthenshire residents to dispose of household 
waste only. We've introduced a free permit system for certain vehicle types to ensure that 
businesses are not using the recycling centres illegally to dispose of commercial waste. 

This is an online application, whereby the vehicle registration document and proof of 
residency must by uploaded to be approved. Successful applicants are issued with twelve 
tickets which they can use throughout the year and reapply upon the anniversary of the 
permit expiry. Supplementing this permit scheme is a vehicle guidance document showing 
which vehicles are allowed entry, which require permits and which are prohibited from the 
sites. Applications for permits can be found on the council website at: Recycling centre 
permits (gov.wales)   

For residents that do not have vehicles and hire vans on a short-term basis, they will have 
access to the HWRC in a hired van (sign writing not essential) if the hire agreement is three 
days or less and the hire agreement and proof of residency is shown on site. 

Trailer of 2.44 meters (8 foot) in bed length will be permissible regardless of the number of 
axles but will be limited by which type of vehicle can enter the site with a trailer.  

Any individual suspected to be accessing the HWRC with waste from a commercial origin will 
be refused entry. 

 
Black bag sorting 
We recommend that you sort your waste into recyclable and non-recyclable materials 
before coming to the recycling centre. Many household items can be recycled, either in 
your blue bag or your food waste bin. Other items such as glass, clothes and small electrical 
items can be recycled at the recycling centre or smaller recycling banks. 

If residents bring black bags to the recycling centre, they will be required to sort them at 
one of our designated sorting stations. 

Our recycling policy for HWRC’s: 

• Unsorted black bag waste is not accepted  
• Householders are instead required to sort all recyclable material from non-recyclable 

materials prior to arriving at the HWRCs. 

Tudalen 105

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/recycling-bins-and-litter/recycling-centres/recycling-centre-permits/#.Ys2QTzfMLIU
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/recycling-bins-and-litter/recycling-centres/recycling-centre-permits/#.Ys2QTzfMLIU


22 
 

• On arrival householders are required to place recyclable items in the relevant recycling 
container, and only non-recyclable items in the residual waste (general waste/black 
bag) skip. 

• If a person arrives at the HWRCs with unsorted waste, they will be given the option to 
either sort their black bags in a designated sorting area at the site or return home to 
sort their black bag waste. 

• Any bags sorted on site must be sorted by householders, site staff will be able to 
provide guidance but will not assist with the sorting. 

• The deposit of recyclable items in the residual skips will not be permitted. 
 
Donation Stations 
 
Residents are encouraged to donate any domestic waste item which is of reasonable 
condition that can be cleaned, repaired or upcycled at the ‘Eto’ repair and reuse facility, when 
attending the HWRC.   

• Donation stations are located at all four HWRC and are located near the entrance of 
the HWRC to encourage residents to donate items at the designated donation station 
before disposing for recycling or waste disposal within the HWRC skips.  

• No waste after deposited in the skips can be taken by the public for repair or reuse 
purposes. 

• All waste donated must be left at the donation stations for repair and reuse 
• All waste donated must be domestic waste such as;  

o Garden equipment 
o Wood and wooden items 
o Bikes 
o Electricals 
o Furniture 
o Household items 
o Sports equipment 
o Children’s toys 
o CDs & DVDs 
o Books 
o Tiles 
o Rugs 

 
• No donated items can be taken from the donation station by the public when 

deposited by others 
• Donation stations are open during the same operating times as the HWRCs 

 
Education and enforcement: 

 
Any person that leaves unsorted black bag waste at, or in the vicinity of, the HWRCs, will be 
considered to have committed the offence of ‘fly tipping’ as per s34 of the EPA 1990, and will 
be subject to CCCs Enforcement Policy. 

Tudalen 106



23 
 

The council’s enforcement officers can on occasion visit the recycling centre to undertake 
spot checks. Thus, to ensure that residents are compliant with the disposal of waste on site 
and to determine no commercial activity is occurring on any of the four recycling centres. 

  
 
Disposal of blue bags (dry recycling) 
 
Residents can dispose of their blue bags, containing dry recycled materials, at all four 
HWRCs in dedicated skips. From 1st April 2023, following a review removal of the blue bag 
skip may be possible as there will be a weekly provision for the collection of these at 
kerbside. Recycling provision for dry mixed recycling items that may come from black bag 
sorting on site will be available. 
 
  
Plasterboard (gypsum) waste and asbestos 

Plasterboard is made of the mineral gypsum, which produces hydrogen sulphide gas (rotten 
egg smell) in landfills. Plasterboard is no longer permitted in landfills but must be recycled 
and as this material is found mostly in construction materials a limit is put on the amount 
that can be taken into the HWRCs. This is restricted to three standard bin bags per month.  
The plasterboard in the bags needs to be decanted into the plasterboard containers on site.   

Only cement bonded asbestos is allowed at the HWRCs (Chrysotile).  Blue and Brown 
asbestos (Crocidolite & Amosite) are not allowed and require specialist treatment and 
disposal.  

The cement bonded asbestos must be double bagged, and the bags sealed. Up to three bags 
of asbestos are permitted for disposal at the HWRCs each year. 

Whole sheets of cement bonded asbestos and quantities of both asbestos and plasterboard 
more than the three bags, are taken to Nantycaws, over the weighbridge and an 
appropriate disposal fee paid to the site operator. 

 
Refrigerators and freezers – COLD units 

Up to and no more than three domestic fridges, freezers, wine coolers or fridge freezers 
(including American style domestic fridge freezers and domestic chest freezers) per 
household to be deposited at the HWRC per visit. No commercial coolers, fridges, or 
freezers are allowed on site.  

Fridges must be clean and contain no food or other items that are not inherently part of the 
apparatus.  It is advisable to remove the seals to avoid children, pets or wildlife becoming 
trapped within.  

 
 
Charities  

Any registered charity using the Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) for the 
disposal or recycling of waste will need to contact the waste section of the local authority 

Tudalen 107



24 
 

for permission to use the site. Charities will need to register with the waste section prior to 
use of any of the HWRCs and will need to provide the following: 

• Provision of a registered charity number 
• Registration number and make of the vehicle delivering waste to the site 
• 24 hours’ notice of delivery of materials to a named HWRC. 

 

The following disposal conditions will apply: 

• Disposal of recyclable or compostable materials will be free of charge with unlimited 
visits. 

• Disposal of residual black bag waste will be limited to two times a month. 
 

Hardcore, rubble and any other construction materials will be chargeable and will need to 
go over the weighbridge at Nantycaws or via the commercial recycling centre in accordance 
with the opening times of the facility. 

If waste is picked up by a charity whereby, they receive monies for its disposal, then this 
material will have to be diverted to a transfer station or landfill and the appropriate disposal 
fee paid. 

 

Eto – repair and reuse 
 
Eto is a Welsh Government Circular Economy grant funded project that will help everyone in 
Carmarthenshire to be more sustainable, cut down on waste and give a second life to 
perfectly good items. 

Re-using is a great way to save the energy used from making new products, helping to 
reduce carbon footprint and allow residents to do their bit to protect the environment. 

The project is set up to help create a circular economy in Carmarthenshire, keeping items in 
use for longer and all the benefits that brings. 

Repaired, re-used and re-purposed items are available at; 

• Eto, 31 Stepney Street, Llanelli   
• Canolfan Eto, Nantycaws Recycling Centre, Llanddarog Road, Carmarthen 

Donated items will be assessed to ensure that they are in a suitable condition and are safe 
to be re-used, repaired or re-purposed. After this, any necessary work will be carried out 
before items are sold.  

All electrical items will be subject to Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) which is a routine 
inspection of electrical appliances to ensure they are safe to use. 

No warranty is provided. 

Returns can be made, and full refund provided based on consumer rights legislation. 

Opening hours of Eto shops are published on the council’s website. 

 

Tudalen 108



25 
 

 

Tudalen 109



26 
 

Appendix 
Appendices 1 - Garden Waste Terms and Conditions 
 
Terms and Conditions  
These are the terms of the agreement between Carmarthenshire County Council, County 
Hall, Carmarthen, Carmarthenshire SA31 1JP and the customer regarding this garden waste 
service.  
 
Service  
 
1.This service is available to Carmarthenshire residents for household use only.  
2. Collections will take place on the first garden waste collection day after delivery of your 
bin and on a fortnightly basis thereafter. Online ordering will result in immediate 
notification of day and week of collection. Alternatively, if you order via other methods, you 
will receive communication stipulating your collection day and week.  
3. Bin(s) should be stored on your property and put out for collection before 6am on 
collection day. If we receive a missed collection call from you, we will refer to our on-board 
camera system to detect if the bin was out for collection. We will not call back if the bin was 
not presented at the time of collection. 
 4. All garden waste must be placed loose inside the bin and the bin lid must be closed for 
collection. We will not collect the following: • Bagged garden waste • Overflowing bins • 
Bins that are too heavy • Bins that contain non-permitted items (full list on our website)  
5. Some properties may not be suitable for this service due to restricted access for our 
collection vehicles. In that event we reserve the right to withdraw the garden waste 
collection service and to notify you accordingly. If payment has been processed a full refund 
will be given.  
 
Delivery of wheeled bin(s) and collections of garden waste 
 
6. We aim to deliver the bin(s) within 10 working days of receiving your payment. However, 
this may not be possible on every occasion. You will be kept informed of any delay.  
7. The bin(s) remain the property of the council and must not be defaced or inscribed in any 
way. Customers are responsible for keeping their containers clean and return the bins to 
their residential property as soon as collections have been made. Damaged or stolen bin(s) 
must be reported immediately on www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/gardenwaste or call 
01267 234567. The council reserves the right to make a charge to replace any containers 
damaged because of misuse by the customer.  
8. If the access road to your property for the collection vehicle or crew is blocked, the 
council will endeavour to return once the area is clear. In exceptional circumstances, if a 
collection vehicle is repeatedly restricted from collecting the bin(s), residents may be asked 
to take their containers to an agreed collection point. 9. Dependant on demand you may not 
receive a new bin and you may instead be provided with a bin returned from a previous 
customer, in this event we will clean and wash the bin before delivering.  
10. The authority will not be liable for any injury or damage resulting from the use or 
movement of the bin, except where death or personal injury is due to negligence on the 
part of the council or its employees.  

Tudalen 110



27 
 

11. Wheeled bins will not be collected in from you at the end of each season, they should be 
retained and stored for the next season. 
 
Charges and subscriptions  
 
12. Subscriptions are renewed annually at the start of the season. The contract will 
terminate at the end of each season. The season dates are subject to change. Existing 
customers will receive a renewal notice, for the following years’ service, in advance of the 
payment deadline each year.  
13. Payments for the service will be published on Carmarthenshire County Council website. 
No concessions are available for this service.  
14. You will pay the full cost whatever point in the year you subscribe to the service. Once 
collections have started from your wheeled bin, there will be no refund if you; • decide to 
cancel the service at any point during the season • if collections cannot be carried out for 
reasons beyond the council’s control • if you report a missed collection but our enquiries 
confirm that the bin was not presented at the normal collection point at the time of 
collection.  
15. If you do not renew the garden waste contract for the new season you are required to 
contact us on ENVGardenWaste@carmarthenshire.gov.uk to make arrangements for 
collection of the bin. Failure to surrender the bin will result in a charge of £25  
16. If you move house within Carmarthenshire - please let us know at least 10 working days 
before you are due to move so that we can make sure your bin gets emptied at your new 
address and advise of any changes to your personal contact details. Likewise, if you move 
outside the county, please contact us so that we can make arrangements to collect the bin. 
Email us on; ENVGardenWaste@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
  
 
Cancellation of the service  
 
17. You have a right to cancel this contract within 14 days of the contract being concluded, 
without giving any reason. If you exercise these statutory cancellation rights, we will give 
you a full refund within 14 days of cancellation. For further information on your cancellation 
rights and how to exercise them, see the Instructions for cancellation and model 
cancellation form in the Schedule to these terms and conditions.  
 
Our rights to terminate  
 
18. Carmarthenshire County Council reserves the right to terminate this service at any time 
if:  
a) We decide that your property is not suitable for this service due to access to the property 
being restricted. A full refund will be given.  
b) You fail to make any payments to the council under this contract at the required time. 
There will be no refund for monies received and you remain liable to pay full annual cost of 
the service.  
c) You regularly place items out for collection which do not qualify as household garden 
waste, or which are prohibited items listed on our webpage; 

Tudalen 111

mailto:ENVGardenWaste@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


28 
 

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/gardenwaste There will be no refund for monies received 
and you remain liable to pay full annual cost of the service  
 
Your rights to terminate  
 
19. In addition to your statutory cancellation rights (in clause 16) you can also terminate this 
contract at any time by giving us 7 days’ notice in writing. If you terminate under this clause, 
we will not give you a refund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 112



29 
 

Appendices 2 – AHP and children’s nappy waste terms and conditions 
 

1. This service is for Carmarthenshire residents only and solely for domestic use.  You confirm that the 
waste is not from a commercial business, e.g., a residential care home, or a registered child minder. 
 

2. Once you receive your purple bags, you can start putting them out on your next Hygiene & Nappy 
Waste collection day.  You can look this up on our webpage where you can also download and print a 
collection calendar.  
 

3. Bags should be placed out before 7am for collection at your usual refuse/recycling collection point.   
 

4. Do not report a missed collection until after 3pm on the day of collection.  Any reports after 3pm will be 
checked against our onboard camera footage to verify the waste was out and at the correct location 
when we called at your property.  If the bags were not out, we will notify you and not return until the next 
scheduled collection day. You will need to remove the bags from the collection point until then.  

 
5. All hygiene and nappy waste must be placed in purple bags provided.  All bedpans, catheter and stoma 

bags should be emptied if possible before placing in the purple bag. 

6. Some properties may require a visit to see how we can assist with offering the service.   If this is the 
case, you agree to this and you will be contacted directly.  

 
7. We aim to deliver the purple bags within 10 working days of receiving your application.  We will contact 

you should this be delayed.  When you require further bags, you must apply for more to be delivered to 
your registered address.  Requests can be made via our website or by contacting Customer Services on 
01267 234567.  Please ensure you leave enough time for delivery to take place. 
 

8. Once you have applied, you will remain a customer until you contact us to advise you wish to cancel. 
 

9. If you need to stop your collections temporarily, please contact us.  If you do not put waste out on three 
consecutive collections, we will contact you to see if you still require the service.  A review of customers 
will also be carried out every two years. 
 

10. If you are completing the form on behalf of someone else, you agree for us to contact you using the 
information you provided.  We will notify you of any service change/delays on their behalf, and you will 
inform them of the changes. 
 

11. If you require the service for children’s nappies, the child/children can only be registered for the service 
under one Carmarthenshire address.  If relatives are helping to care for your child at another property, 
they cannot register for the service as well.  However, you can give them purple sacks for any used 
nappies, but they must pass them back to you for collection from your own registered address. 
 

12. You agree to contact us and amend your address details if you move house, change your email address 
or other contact details. 
 

13. You agree to inform us to cancel collections once the service user no longer requires the service 
  

Tudalen 113



 
 

Appendices 3 – Individual property education and enforcement process map 
 

Education/Enforcement Process 2022 
Process for individual properties, not adhering to blue/black bag policy (not communal waste points)  

 
                                
  
 
 
 
 

Crew find a problem, use 
appropriate sticker tick 
reason & leave the bag 

Crew record on their 
daily debrief sheet and 

hand to supervisor at the 
end of the shift

The supervisor collates all 
crew sheets checks 

addresses, completing any 
unknown house name/no 
or road etc. and passes to 

the Hub 
Following above checks, if a stage 1 was previously 
issued and this instance is for a different colour, issue 
stage 1 for this bag type. If prop already triggered 
stage 1 for this colour bag, move to stage 2.

Any feedback from recipient after 1st stage letter 
recorded by Hub in File Plan. Any stage 1 corporate 

complaint logged following issue of letter, answered by 
Hub using standard letter on file plan.  Any issues not 

covered to be forwarded to TS Recycling mailbox

STAGE 1

If the resident 
continues to do 

something wrong, the 
crew sticker, record 

on debrief, supervisor 
checks addresses, 

collates and passes to 
Hub

Hub check status on 
APP & Task, and 

cross reference with 
any missed 

collection reports, if 
2nd offence for 

same colour, or 3rd 
offence for a 

combination of 
colours pass to 
Enforcement 

STAGE 2

STAGE 4

If the resident 
continues to do 

something wrong, the 
crew sticker, record 

on debrief, supervisor 
checks addresses, 

collates and passes to 
Hub

The Hub check Task & 
APP status for any 

previous section 46 
issued, and cross 

reference with any 
missed collection 
reports. leave the 
waste on site, and 

pass to CRA via APP

STAGE 3

The Hub check status history 
for that property and cross 
reference with any missed 

collection reports and consult 
with Enforcement lead, to 
determine next course of 

action and possible issue of 
FPN.

If the resident 
continues to do 

something wrong, the 
crew sticker, record 

on debrief, supervisor 
checks addresses, 

collates and passes to 
Hub

Enforcement issue a 
section 46 to the 

individual property or 
whole street if 

appropriate.  Enf 
update APP within 24 

HRS

CRA call at property on next 
collection day prior to pick up. 

Pending findings that day, record 
visit details via ‘adhoc survey’. Issue 

stage 3 letter to resident, If no 
answer post through the door.  

Remove the waste if not compliant, 
and update APP with details of visit

Hub check status on APP & Task, 
and cross reference with any 

missed collection reports                 
If 1st offence issue stage 1 for that 

colour. If 1st stage letter issued

Tudalen 114



 

31 
 

Appendices 4 – Communal collection point education and enforcement process 
 

Education/Enforcement Process  
Process for properties with communal collection points  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

The crew find a 
problem and record 

on their daily 
debrief sheet but 

remove the waste.  
They hand the sheet 
to supervisor at the 

end of the shift

The supervisor collates all 
crew sheets, checks 

addresses, completing any 
unknown house name/no or 
road, and passes to the Hub 

The Hub obtains 
address details from 
Waste Ops Team of 
properties using the 

collection point
The Hub issues the 1st stage communal 

point letter to addresses listed as 
official users of the collection point

If the resident 
continues to do 

something wrong, the 
crew record on 

debrief, collect the 
waste, supervisor 
checks addresses, 

collates and passes to 
Hub.

The Hub forward 
to CRA via APP as 
the 2nd stage for 

CRA to visit 

CRA record visit 
details via 

‘adhoc survey’ if 
no answer, issue 
stage 2 letter on 

the spot.  
Update APP with 

details of visit

If the resident 
continues to do 

something wrong, the 
crew record on debrief, 

leave the waste, 
supervisor checks 

addresses, collates and 
passes to Hub.

The Hub refers 
to Enforcement 

to visit, find 
evidence to 

ascertain the 
culprit and issue 

a section 46 

If no evidence found, 
enforcement issue a 
blanket section 46 to 
all residents using the 

collection point

Hub check status on 
APP if section 46 issued 

allocated to 
Enforcement Officer to 

issue FPN   

If it is not an official 
collection point Waste 
Ops team issue a letter 

Waste Ops team 
advise depot of HH 
numbers using that 

collection point 

Stage 1

Stage 2

If fly tipping found, to 
be actioned as 

appropriate

Stage 3

If the resident 
continues to do 

something wrong, the 
crew record on debrief, 

collect the waste, 
supervisor checks 

addresses, collates and 
passes to Hub.

if no section 46 issued 
allocated to 

Enforcement Officer to 
call at property to find 
evidence/issue blanket 

section 46 

Stage 4

Hub to liaise with 
Enforcement & 
Supervisor to 

advise crew that 
waste should be 
left on next black 

bag week for 
Enforcement to 

retrieve evidence

Enforcement notify Hub 
to request cleansing clear 

waste with 48 hrs

Enforcement Officer to 
repeat visit until 

evidence found to issue 
FPN

Tudalen 115



 

32 
 

Appendices 5 – Parked Cars Process 
 
 

 
  

Tudalen 116



 

33 
 

GWASANAETHAU: 
SERVICE: 

Gwasanaethau Gwastraff & Gorfodi yr Amgylchedd 
Waste Services & Environmental Enforcement 

FERSIWN: 
VERSION: 

 

TEITL: TITLE: Process Map: Waste Collection Access - Parked Vehicle (Collection Team Process) 

 

 

GWASANAETHAU AMGYLCHEDDOL A GWASTRAFF WASTE 
& ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES  

TUDALEN 2 O 2 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

Start

Supervisor to Report to 
Assistant Manager (Waste  )

for Action

Parked Vehicle 
Sticker On Vehicle

During Collection Parked Vehicle(s) 
Obstructing Collections

Assistant Manager (Waste  ) & 
Supervisors to keep Collection Crew 

Updated on Progress and Actions 

Assistant Manager (Waste  ) & 
Supervisors to Arrange for 
Education or Enforcement 

Action

Number of 
Occasions

End

Complete “Collection Crew Statement”
And capture images of vehicle on CCTV if 
safe and practicable. 

Crew Complete 
“Crew Statement”

Crew Complete 
“Crew Statement” 

and Sticker car

Crew Complete 
“Crew Statement”

First 
Occasion

Second 
Occasion

Third 
Occasion

Tudalen 117



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	3 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALWYD AR 09 IONAWR 2023
	6 DEISEB AR GYFER DIOGELWCH PALMENTYDD A FFYRDD - CASTELLNEWYDD EMLYN
	Adroddiad
	Print Preview for Newcastle Emlyn
	intlist
	acc_inter


	7 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM GRONFA FFYNIANT GYFFREDIN Y DU
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3

	8 CYMERADWYO ARFOR 2 (2022-2025)
	9 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM Y STRATEGAETH WASTRAFF
	Adroddiad
	Introduction
	Kerbside Collections
	Collection Frequency
	Presentation of refuse and recycling receptacles
	Dry Recycling (blue bags)
	Food Waste
	Glass bottles and jars
	Garden Waste
	*Requires registration and is a seasonal subscription (paid for) service

	Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP) Nappy Waste
	Black bag residual waste
	Black Bag Limit Exemptions
	Large families
	Ashes
	Pet waste


	Receptacles, Dustbins and Wheeled Bins
	All refuse and recycling receptacles supplied to householders shall always remain the property of the Council Assisted lift collections
	Assisted Collections
	Requires registration and limited to infirm residents

	Bulky Waste Collections
	Chargeable service
	Cancellations and Refunds

	Compost Bins
	Christmas and New Year Collections
	Distribution Outlets for bags and caddies
	Education and Enforcement Process
	Collection Points
	Housing developments and unadopted roads
	Rear Lanes and Long Reach Properties
	Private roads

	Highway maintained roads
	Parked cars

	Missed Collections
	Email and text messaging service
	Holiday homes, holiday rentals, caravan parks/sites and bed and breakfast establishments
	Cemeteries and Places of worship
	Domestic waste
	Commercial waste charges

	Collection of waste from charities
	Household Waste Recycling Centres
	Proof of Residency
	Permits and vehicle guidance
	Black bag sorting
	Donation Stations
	Education and enforcement:
	Disposal of blue bags (dry recycling)
	Plasterboard (gypsum) waste and asbestos
	Refrigerators and freezers – COLD units
	Charities
	Eto – repair and reuse

	Appendix
	Appendices 1 - Garden Waste Terms and Conditions
	Appendices 2 – AHP and children’s nappy waste terms and conditions
	Appendices 3 – Individual property education and enforcement process map
	Appendices 4 – Communal collection point education and enforcement process
	Appendices 5 – Parked Cars Process






